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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Memberc ol the

l\rlu nicipal Assembly
lrunicipality of San Sebastan, Puerto Rico

we have audited the accompaoying fnancial statements of lhe govemme0talactivities, the business-type activilies,

each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerlo Rico, as

of and for the year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise the l\,luflicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto

Rico's basic fi ncialstatements as listed in the table ofcontents. These financial statements are the responsibility ol

l\,lunicipality of San Sebasti6n, Puerto Rico's management. OuI responsibility is to express opinions on these

financial statements based on ouraudit.

we conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united states of America

and the standards applicable to fnancial audils contained in Governnent Auditing Slandards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require hat we plan and pedom the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whelher the financial stalements are free of material misstatemenl. An audit includes

examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounls and disclosures in the fnancial statements, assessing

the accounting p nciples used and lhe significanl estimates made by management, as wellas evaluating the overall

fnancial stalement presentation. We believe that ouraudit provides a reasonable basis forour opinions.

ln our opinion, the linancial statements refened lo above present faidy, in all material respects, lhe respective

fnancial position of the govemmental activities, the business'type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate

remaining tund information of the l!,lunicipality of San Sebastian, Puedo Rico, as of June 30, 2011, and the respective

changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year lhen ended in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States ofAme ca

ln accordance with Govem nent Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated Jaltuary 20, 2012, on our

consideration of lhe l\runicipality of san sebastiSn, Puerto Rico's ifltemal control over linancial reporting and on our

tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts' and grant agrcements and other

matters. The purpose of lhat reporl is to describe the scope ol our testing of intemal control ovel inancial reporting

and compliance and the rcsults of that testing, and not to ptovide an opinion on intemal conhol over fnancial

reporling or on compliance. That repott is an integral pa( of an audit perfomed in accodance wilh Govennenl

/udrtirg Stardards and should be considered in assessing he resutts ofour audit.

Accounting p nciples generally accepted in the united states of America require lhat the management's discussion

and anatyiii and budgetary omparison inlormation on pages 3lhrough 13 and 55 througi 56 be presented to

supplement lhe basic fnanaial statements. Such information, although not a pad ofthe basic financialstatements, iS

,.eiri,.eO Oy lt" Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers il to be an essential part of fnancial

reporting for placing the basic fnancial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. we

have applied' certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accodance with auditing

standatd; generally accepted in the Un1ed States ofAmerica, which consisted of inquiries of management about the

methods oi preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses

to our inquiries, tte basic financial statements, and other knowledge we oblained during our audit ol the basic

financial siatements. We do nol express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited

procedures do not provide us with sufiicienl evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

(coNTTNUED)

Our audit was conducted lor lhe purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise

Itre Municipatity of San Sebasti6n, iuerto Rico's fnancial statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of

expenditures oilederalawards on page 57 is prcsented for puPoses of additional analysis as lequired by U S' Office

of Management and Budg et cicuiat A-fi3, Audits of states, Local Govemmentg and Non-Prcft oryanizations, atd

is not aiequired pa( oithe fnancial stateme6ts. Such information is the rcsponsibility ol management and was

de ved lTom and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the linancial

slatemenls. The infomation haa been subjected to tite auditing prccedures applied in lhe audit of the iinancial

staiements and ceftain additional prccedures, including comparing and reconciling such inlormation direclly to the

underlying accounting and other records used to prcpare the financial statements or to the frnancial statemenls

tnemsilvis, anO otnei additional prccedures in accordance with auditing slandards generally accepted in the United

states of America. ln our opinion, lhe information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial

slatemenls as a whole.

:7: .1
PUBLICOS AUTORIZADOS, CSP

LCENSE #35. N FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico

Jan@ry 20,2012

Stamp #E9974 was affxed to

lhe originalof this reporl
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

The managemeflt of Municipality of San Sebasti,n, Puerto Rico (Municipality) oflerc this nanative oveNiew and analysis of

the linanciit activities or the Llunicipatity for the fiscalyear ended June 30, 2011. The lranagement's Discussion and Analysis

([,,10&A) is designed to focus on lhe cunent year activities, resulting changes and cunenlty known facts, and much of the

informaiion is cimparable to prior year. This l,4DM should b€ read in conjunction wiih the accompanying basic fnancial

statements and the accompanying noles to those financial statements.

The new reporting model, requircd by GovemmentalAccounting Standards Boad Slatement N0.34, was implemented during

the iscal year 2063-2004. This [,108A is prepared in order to comply with such pronouncement and, among olher purposes, to

provide the fnancial statements use$with the following major informationi

. a broader basis tn focusing impodanl tssues'

. acknowledgement of an oveNiew ofthe l\4unicipality's fnancial activities;

. provide for-an evaluation of its financial condition as ofthe end ofthe ind icated ,iscal year, compared with prior year lesults;

. identi,lcation of uses olfunds in the financi0g oflhe [,lunicipality's variety of activities and;

r assess managemenfs ability to handle budgetary functions.

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following are key linancialhighlights for the fiscalyear

. The[,lunicipality'sassetsexceededitsliabilitiesatJune30,20llby$38,115,535,afldatJune30,2010by$35,172,236,as
restated:

. The Mun icipality's total net assels increase by $2,943,299du ng fiscalyear 2010-2011i

. As of Juoe 30, 2011, the l,runicipality's govemmental tunds reported combined endiflg tund balance of $14,440,484, an

increase of $5,240,247 from the prioryear;
. At June 30, 201'l,lhe Statement of Net Asset presented an unrestricted deficit of $(6,465,804);
. During iscalyear 2010-2011, the l,lunicipality issue $3,045,000 in bonds and noles debts;

. The liunicipality's capital assets ioventory increase as a result of this year's operations. Capital assets as of June 30, 2011

were $50,830,850 (net of ac.u mulated depreciation);
. The investment in capitalassets lor this year was $37,146,163 (net of related debt);
. Loans principal payments werc $1,330,000 and $1,325,000 in 2011 and 2010, respectively'

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The totalnel assets ofthe proprietary fund amou0ted to $1,011,770, of which $43'1,680 are invested in capitalassels, net of

related debt, while $491,290 are restricted forthe operations offederally tunded programs

. The total0et assets ofthe proprietary tund increased by $38,244 during the fiscalyear ended on June 30,2011.

OVERVIEW OF THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion aod analysis are intended to seNe as an introduction to the [.lunicipality's f0ancial statements. The

lvtunicipality's basic financial stalements comprise thrce components: govemment-wide financial statements; fund linancial

statements; and notes to the linancial statemenls. This report also contains other supplementary inlormation in addition to the

basic financial siatements themselves.

ROM,IN TORO A CO., CSP CerttJiecl Public Arovttahts a .l Business Consultants

PO BoX 3043 YALTCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 356'O20 FAX: (787) 356-6231



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALiW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide fnancial statements are composed of: (1) the statement of net assets and (2) the statement of activities.

Thes; fnancial statements can be found immediately following lhis MD&A. These fnancial statements are designed to provide

readers with a broad overyiew of the Municipality's finances, in a mannel similar 1o a private-sector business'

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

The purpose of the statement of net assets is to attempt to report all assets owned and all liabilities owed by he lrunicipality.

The'Mu;icipality reports of all of its assets when it acquires ownerchip over the assets and reporls all of its liabilities when

they are incurred. For example, the lllunicipality reports buildings and ilfrastructure as assets, evefl though lhey ale not

av;ilabte io pay the obtigations iflcurred by ihe Municipality. On lhe other hand, the Municipality reporb liabilities, such as

claims and judgments, bonds and notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compe0sated absences and certain

accounts payable and accrued liabilities, even though these liabilitjes might not be paid until several fiscal years into the

futue.

The difierence between the Municipality's total assets and total liabilities reported in lhe statement of net assets is presented

as net assels, which is similar to lhe lotal owners' equity reporied by a commercial enterp se in its frnancial stalements.

Although the purpose ol the lrunicipality is not to accumulate net assets, as this amount increases or decreases over time,

such imount rcpresents a useful indicator of whether the inancial posilion of the lt'lunicipality is either improving 0I

detedorating, rcspectively.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The statement of activities presents information showing how the [Iunicipality's net assets changed duriflg lhe fscal year

ended June 30,2011, by presenting all of the llunicipality's revenues and expenses. As previously discussed, the items

reported in the statemeni of aclivities are measured in a maflner similar to the approach used by a commercial enterprise in

hat revenues are recognized wher earned or established crite a are satis{ied, and expenses are recorded when incuned by

the Municipality. Consequently, revenues are reporled even when lhey may not be collected for several months after lhe end

of the fscalyear and expenses are recorded even though they may not have used cash during the current year'

Although lhe statemenl of activities looks different from a commercial enterprise's income statement, the difference is only in

format; not substance. Whercas the bottom line in a com mercial enterprise replesents its net income, the [,'tunicipalily repods

an amountdesc bed as netchange in nel assets, which is essenlially lhe same concept.

The focus ol the statement of activities is on lhe net cost of various activities provided by the l\.'lunicipality. The stalement

begins with a column that identifes the cost of each of tre l\.{unicipality's major tunctions. Another column idenlifies lhe

rev-enues $at are speciiically related to the classified governmental functions. The difference between ihe expenses and

.evenues elated to specific functions/programs identifies the extent to which each function of the l\y'unicipality draws from

generalrevenues or is self-fnancing through lees, intergovernmental aid, and othersources of resources'

Ihis slatement also presents a compahon between direct expenses and program revenues for each function of the

Nrlunicipality.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Ce'lifed PublicAccowta tsand Business Consuhants

PO RoX 3043 fAUCo PR 00698-3043 TEL. (737) 856 6220 F,LY: (787) 856'6233



COMi'ONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Both of the government,wide linancial statements of lhe l\,4unicipality are principally s{rpported by laxes and intergovernmental

revenues. The lvtunicipality's activities include; general government, public safety, public woris, culture, .ecreation, heaith and

wefiare, and inlerests. Prcpedy taxes, volume ol business laxes, sales laxes, and state and lederalgrants inance mosl ol these

activilies.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The l\,4unicipatity's fund linancial stalements consist of: (1) the balance sheel - governmental tunds, (2) the statemenl of

revenues, expenditures and changes in lund balances - govemmental funds, (3) the stalemenl of net assets - proprietary fund,

(4)the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net assets - proprietary fund, and (5)the statement ofcash fows

- proprietary fund. These fnancial statements report the fnancial position, the results of operations and cash flows of the

Municipality;s governmental and proprietary funds with an emphasis on the lt/unicipality's major governmental and prcprietary

tunds.

A fund is a grouping ol related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segrcgaied for specific

activities or;bjectives. The [4unicipality, like most other stale and local govemments, uses fund accounting to ensure and

demoflskale compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Each fund is considered an independent fiscal entity

accounted for wilhin a set of self-balancing accounts that comp se its assets, liabilities, fund equity, rcvenue, and expenditures.

Fund accounling segregates funds according to therr inlended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating

compliance wilh legal linancial and contractual provisions.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The l,4unicipality's basic seNices are repo(ed in ihe government fund linancial statemenls. The govemmenl funds are

reported using an acmunting method called modiried accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other linancial assets

that can readily be converted into cash. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions repolted

as govemmenial activities in the government,wide fnancial siatements. However, unlike the governmenlwide fnancial

sbt;ments, governmental tund linancial slatements focus on near-term inllo$s and outflows of spendable rcsources, as well

as on balancis ol spendable resources available at the end of lhe fscalyear. Such informatio0 may be useful in evaluating a

govemment's near,tem fnancing requlrements. Because the focus of govemmental lunds is narrcwer than that of the

aovernmenlwide fnancial statemenls, it is uselulto compare the inlormation presented for governmentallunds with similar

information presented for govemmenlal activities in the govemment-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may

better understand the long-term impactofthe govemment's near'term financing decisio0s

The Municipality adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund. A budgelary compa son statement has been

provided forthe genemllund to demonslrale compliance wiih this budget.

PROPRIETARY FUND

The proprietary fund is a fund used to repoft the fnancial posilion, results ol operation and cash fows of Villa Soigal (Project

No. 63-29-665705492,01-3), is a housing development consisting of 120 dwelling units located in San Sebastian.

ROM4N TOR) s! CO., CSP Ceiilit(l Public Accoqtants and Busi ess Cot s ltdnls

Po BOX 3043 vALiCo PR 00698-3043 TEL- 1787) 856 622A F/x: l7ti7) 856'6213



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2()I1

FUND FINANCIALSTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

PROPRIETARY FUt'ID (CONTINUED)

The project is owned by lhe l\runicipality, but its operations arc cafiied out by a private management agenl lnrelated to tie
Municipility. Tne nousing devetopment project of Villas Soigalhas been designed to assist various segments oflhe general

public in obtaining adequite and reasonable priced rcntal housing. The project operates u0der linancing through the Section

b New Construclion and Substantial Rehabililation Program of the U.S. Departmenl of Housing and llrban Development and

the section 5.15 Rulal Rental Housing Loans Program ofthe u.s. Department ofAgriculture. The puryose of villas soigalis

to provide adequate housing to low-income residents ofthe l\4unicipality

The activities of Villas Soigal have been reported as a proprietary fund in lhe accompanying basic {inancial statements since

GAAP permits the use of enterp se funds to report any activity for which a fee is charged to external users of goods or

servicei, regardless ofwhetherthe govemmeni intends to fully recover the cost ofthe goods or services provided. Thus, itis

common to-use proprietary fund reporting to account for services where the govemment intends to recover oflly a portion of

its costs lhrough fees or usercharges.

Prop etary I!nds provide the same type ofinlormation as the GWFS, but in more detail.

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes prcvide additional information that is essential to a full understanding oI the data provided in the governmenlwide

and f und f nancial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

ln addition to lhe basic frnancial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents cedain rcquired supplementary

information containing budget to actual comparisons lor the genemland majorfunds.

RO\,LAN TORO & CO., CSP CetiJied Public Accotoltants and Busin'ss Consultants

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: (787) 856'621)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENTAL NET ASSETS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a govemment's fnancial posilion. ln lhe case of he

lllunicipality, governmental activities assets exceeded liabilities by $38,115,535 as of June 30, 2011, versus $35,172'236 as of

June i0, 2b16, as restated, and business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $'1,011,770 as of Ju0e 30, 2011, vercus

$973,526 as of June 30,2010. Our analysis below focuses ofl lhe net assets (Table 1) and changes in net assets of the

[,runicipality's governmental activities and business-type activities.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201'I

GOVERNMENT.WOE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

The largest portion of the lrunicipality's net assets reflects its inveslment in capital assets (e.9. land, buildings, machinery and

equipm;nt), less any related debt used to acquire lhose assets still outstanding. These capital assets arc used to provide

services to citizenst consequently these assets are not available for future spending. lt should also be noted lhat lhe resources

rcquked to repay lhe relaled debt must be provided from olher sources, since lhe capital assets themselves cannot be used to

liquidate ihese liabilities. An additional pofion ofihe l!.lunicipality's net assets represents resources that arc subiect io external

restrictions on howthey may be used

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Govemmental activities increased the Municipalitys net assets. Key elemenls of this increase are as follows: the lrunicipality's

governmefltal activities had net expenses of $14,674,085. However, these services are intended to be p marily funded by

taxes, as opposed to charges lor services and granls, and those taxes and other general revenues exceed net expenses by

$2,943,299. ln addition, business-type activities increased the [,lunicipality's net assets by $38 244

The cost of all governmental activities and business-type activities this year was $26,866,137 and 589,592, respectively. Table 2

presents the cost of each ofthe [./lunicipality's largest proglams.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

2011 Revenues

ps pa Zok

r Grants and conbibutions

a Charges for seNices

sPloperttaxes

alfunicipallicenset x

E S ales and use tar

u OtEr loaal taxes

I. inierest and inveitnert eamhgF

LJ lnrrefqrcdls

2011 Expenditures

z"t" 3%
t c'eneral government

3 Publb salety

r. Public worl6 and sanitatbn

g Cullure and recreation

E Health, welfare and education

! Public Housing and Welfare

\, lnteresl on bng-term debts

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSP C.ttlied Public Acco@ta tsanrl Busi ess Consullonts

PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR 006s8'301J ' TEL. (737) 856 6220 FtX: (787) 856 6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

GOVERNMENT.WOE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Approximately thirtyjour percenl {34%) of the Municipality's governmental activities and business-type activities total revenue

cime from taies, while sixty percent (60%) resulted from grants and cont.ibutions. Federal grants rep.esent thirty€ight percent

(38%) of lhe l,lunicipality grants rcvenues. The lrunicipality's governmenlal aclivities and business-type aclivilies expenses

incbied items such as gdneral govemment, public safety, public works, culture and recrealion, health and welfare, public

housing and welfare, and interest on long term debls.

Approximately forty-two percent (42%) of lotal expenses resulted from generalgovemment, thirteen percent (13%) from public

works, six percent (6%)from culture and recreation and twenty-nine percent (29%)from health and welfare.

GOVERNMENT FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the l\runicipality

requirements.

I4E.3
Bllanca Shost

uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal

2!t!
ai G!r!!E!!c)

TolalasseE Maio, Funds

Tolal assels - Olhs Funds

Tota I abi ies - Major Funds

Toral I abiliries - olher Fuids

3 17 197.409 3 12,096433

4 000,073 2,659 871

$ 2r,197,1E2 $ 1a,756,304

$ 5,498632 $ 4,943,952

1,258 366 612,115

6,756,998 5556,067

15,000,000

10,000,000

5,000,000

12,536,206
584.956

8,2a3 5?0
24X285

1 ,319 322 753 432

C.mbrned lola tund balances 14,440,4U 9,2N,237

Totarriabiriri€..ndtundbal.nc.. l_J1lyL ! lq$lq

The focus of the lvunicipality's governmental funds is to prcvide inlormation on near-tem inflows, outffows, and balances of

spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the l\,4unicipality's financing requirements. ln particulal, unreserved

fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governmenl's net rcsources available forspending atthe end of its frscalyear.

Al June 30, 2011, the [4unicipality's governmental funds reported combined ending tund balances of $'14,440,484, an increase

of$5,240,247 from the prior year.

The Municipality has an unassigned fund balance of $1,319,322 in its General Fund. The remainderofthe balance is assigned

and reslricted to indicate that it is not available for new spending because it has akeady been committedi (a) to liquidate prior

year obligalions ($343,673), (b)to pay debt service ($2,193,469) and (c) for olher restricted punoses ($'10,584,020).

RO^,14N TORO a CO-, CSP Cetlited Public Accontants and Business Consuhakts

PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-)013 rEL. 1787) 856 6220 FLY: (787) 856'6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FORTHE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

GOVERNMENT FUNO FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

E!!q!
Ch.no6 h fund B.l.me.

Tolal rcvenues MaiorFunds

Toral Evenues - olher Funds

Combined lola Benues

Tolal dpenditurcs - MaFr Funds

Tolal exp€nd tur6 - o$er Funds

Combined total eroendilues

olher rnami4 etr@s ('6et:
odrer fnanclm sour@s - Major Funds

Net chanqB n tund balaie

Fund Ealam b€ginnl.g, as restated

411

$ 22328,926
7480.510

41S

$ 17,793,226
7,271,321

25,064,547

19,547,230

6,M2,442

26,3t9,672

5.2i5,000

3,949,875

5.2$,fi2

! r?!!i!L

35,m,0m

30,0m,(m

25,0m,m

20,0m,m

15,0m,00

10,m,0m

5,m,0m

29 809,436

20836,120

27.614189

3.045,000

5,24A,247

! qrqq

a ml1

r 2010

Relsu€sad E)Aerdfurcs Ndchatges n
OdErFharirg eldot€r Fud8grce

Sdlr(8a Fhrdu Uses

PROPRIETARY FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30, 2011, fie total assets of proprietary tund amolnted to $2,011,240, which consisted principally of: (1) restricted cash

in commercialbanks of $602,425, and (2) capital assets of $1,387,792, net olaccumulated depreciation

At June 30, 2011, the total liabilities of the proprielary tund amounted to $999,470, which consisted principally of: (1) mortgage

notes payable of $956,112, and (2) accounts payable and accrued liabilities of $38,059.

The total net assets of proprietary tund amounted to $1,011,770 at June 30, 2011, of which $431,680 are invested in capital

assets, and $491,290 are reseNed for program activities.

ROMLN TORO & CO-, CSP Ccllifed Public Acco&ta s a d Busin.ss Consuhants

PO BOX 3013 yAUCO PR 00698-J04t . TEL. 1787) 856 622A FLY: (787) 856'6233

11



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2011

- BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budget and actual compadson schedules are provided in the Basic Financial Stalements for the General Fund. The Budgetary

- Coriparison Schedule of the General Fund shows the odginal adopted budgets, the fnal revised budget, actual results, and

variance between the inal budget and actual results lor the general and major special revenue funds. Table 5 summarizes the

results of the General Fund's Budgetary Comparison Schedule:

Aclual

Table 5 Final Budget Amounts V4!!!e

The originat and the f0al budget of the General Fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $ 13,914,670 and

- $14,064,670, respectively. Over the course of the fiscal year, the Municipality revised lhe General Fund's budgel in order to

'nclude 
increases and decreases in revenues that we.e identfied during the course of the fscal year based on cunent

developments lhat positively affected the Municipality's finances. The laws and regulatiofls of the Commonwealth mandate a

- balanced budget.

The total actual revenues (budgelary basis) of the general fund for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2011 were $14,260,443,

_ which is one percent (1%), or $195,773 more thafl lhe budgeied revenues. ln addition, lhe total actualexpenditu.es and other

- financing sources (budgetary basis)ofthe generaltund for the liscalyear ended June 30, 2011 were $13,380,689, which is five

percent (5%), or$683,981 less han the budgeted expenditures.

- CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT AOMINISTRATION

The l,iunicipalily's investment in capital assets for its governmental type activities as of J une 30, 201 1 amounted to $50,830,850

- (nel of accumulated deprecialion). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, imprcvements, furniture and

ixtures, vehicles and equipment, and infrastructure. The total increase i0 ihe l\,lunicipality's investment in capital assels fol the

cunent liscalyear was $2,657,131. Table 6 present lile major classes of capitalassets

Table 6

CapitalAssets Amounl

- 
Totalrevenues $ 14,064,670 $ 14,260,443 $ 195 773

Total expendilutes, encumbEnces and

olherfinancing uses 14.064.670 13.380.689 683.981

- Excess or deficiency 9 E79J!l

- Construction in progress $ 3,700,666

Land 5,737,776

Buildingsandbuildingimprovements 27,924,613

- Furniture and fixtures 586,912

Vehicles and equipment 1,151,016

lnfrastructure 11.729 867

- TotalAssels $-10330,E50

ROMANTORO &CO., CSP CettiJied Publi.,lccot tantsd d Business Cotlsuhants

PO ROX 304J |AUCO PR 00698 3043 TEL. (787) 8566220 F. ,Y: i87) 856 6231

12



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSIONANDANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDEO JUNE 30, 2011

LONG.TERM DEBT

At June 30, 2011, fie [,lunicipality had total of $27,155,799 in

Table 7. Of Uris amount, $19,272,000 comprises debt backed

other obligations.

and others outstanding debts, as shown

credit of lhe government and $7,883,799

general obligations

by the tull faith and

in

is

Table 7

Lono Term Debts Amount

The l,4unicipality is required lo limit the amount of geneml obligalion debt to 10% of the total assessment of property located

within the [.luniipatity in order for the bonds to be repaid with lhe proceeds of prope(y iaxes rcst cted for debt seNices. Other

obligalions include accrued vacation and sick leave and advances of property taxes. L4ore detailed information about the

lvtunicipality's long-term liabilities is presented in the notes to the fnancial statements. The [,'lunicipality continues to meet ils

financial needs through prudent use of its revenues and creative debtrinancing programs.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

Local, nationaland international economic factors infuence the l\4unicipality's revenues. Positive economic growth is correlated

with increased revenues from property taxes, volume of business taxes, sales taxes, charges fur seNices, as well as slate and

federal gmnts. Economic gtowth in the local economy may be measured by a va ety of indicators such as employment growth,

unemployment, new construction, assessed valuation, and othel reve0ues.

Allofthese facto$ were considered in p.eparing the l\,lunicipality's budget for the 2011 liscalyear. Some cost reductions helped

fund improvements of existing facilities, public safety ard works, economic developmenl initiatives and human service

improvements.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a genercl overview of the Municipality's linances for all lhose with an inlerest in lhe

government's fnances. Ouestions concerning any of lhe information provided in lhis repodor requests foraddiiional information

contact the l\ilunicipality's Finance Department at (787)896-1550.

General obligations bonds and notes $ 19,272,000

OtheE 7.883.799

Total Long Term Debts $_17J55J99

ROM,IN TORO & CO.. CSP Cetlifed Public Accowtantsa d Rusiness Consuhants

Po Rox 3043 vAUCo PR M698-1043 . TEL. (787) 856 62)0 FAX: 087) 856-623J
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Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

Municipality of San Sebastian

Statement of Net Assets

Govemmental
Ac{ivities

Business'type

Activities Total

ASSETS:

Rellt li.ensand permb

Iand, hproverEnb, and consludbn in pr0gr€6s

Oter capiEl Neb, nel ofd€Preoalon

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIESI
A..ounb poyable and acfted liablit6

Bonds and nobs payable

Due b govan@nbl uni6

Mlnijpal li.ense hxes

Dle in mre han one ysa.

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS

Inv€sEd h 6p'El6eg n€t oi relabd .lebt

TOTAL NET ASSETS

10,454,139

9097,167

299 670

173,720

20,972

74,426

28,053

384,270

12,727

642.425

21,423

1r,056.564

9,0s7,167

299,670

173720

20972

7B 426

28,053

3A4,274

12,721

21,023

20 549144 623,448

9 434 442

41,392 408

58 350

1 329 442

21,172.592

9,496792

42.721,850

52.21464250 830 850 1347192

71,379,994 2,011,240 73,391,234

1,141,283

940 0@

425129

1,133,425

1,371,655

185,818

310,350

1 877 763

2527A036

1 371,655

185,818

310,350

1,S71,750

26,140,161

3/l,263,929

38.059 1 .179,342

- 940.000

5,299 431,028

- 1,83425

93,987

862125

33,264,459 939.470

37,146,163

2,193,469

5241107

(6 465 804)

2,193469

5,732997

{6.377004)

431.680 37.571,443

491290

88800

38,115,535

The notes lo the fiiatu al slalemenis are an inlegEl pa/t ol this slalement

$ 1,011,170 $ 39,12?,305

14

ROM{N TORO & CO., CSP Cenilied P.tblic Actotstants ahd B lhess Consuha ls

PO ROX 3A$ yALiCO PR 00698 3013 TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: 1787) 856 33
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Commonwealth ot Puerto Rico

Municipality of San Sebastian
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30,201'l

Uaifi-.nd fund BlxG

Aents payabh and eu€d hDfi6

Tor, li.!fln -.id ,u.d b.hd

- I 2s00fi0 i

12,7'
613,333

310,350

6,7569e3

*,'"

221$

t1.90,1 ! 3,559.193 I 2,50{,0{0 I

62.160 675 s33

,* ,**,

4A177th 1$5729 63210 12s3.366

Tte noles to lhe ii a ncia slalemenls aE an inlegGl pad of this sialem e nl

ROM4|! TORO &CO., CSP Ce,lifed Public Accot&tants aNl Business Co s ltants

PO Rox t013 YAUCO PR 00693-301J . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F,'!'Y: 1787) 856 6233

2:0J42t 12s36 206

-------jplL
su2313 2141701 14 {'r0{t4

a t6s0,70. t t13s,r t 3,569,19s t 2,500,0{0 t 5,!05,523 3 .,000n73 -l_jjJjltl4-
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Commonw€alth of Puerto Rico

MuniciP.lity of San Sebastian

S-tatemenl ot Revenu es, Expenditure3 and Changes in Fund Balances

Govemmenlal Funds

Forthe Year Ended June 30,2011

orh$ Tor.l

Gov.mfrit l G.vmruild
Fuid Fuidr _lg!L

1313,130 $

1 850 609

14352

7*.112

6,1@.122

3€0 693

37! 64i

1756.919 $

606,506

3 t4t 9tl

I 6,070,&9

- 1850609

1.t96,812 2118170

- 758412

3,7t9933 693184

1,901426 10 6631{t
- MA59

7166 ,100,931

2 500 000

10614

192174 571814

a 8i! 43614310517 3.141911 2.365384 25mm0 10611 7,480,510

Fened s@b 4d mrituhns

EIB (d€bemr) olB6u6 der

ohdfir.n.iie sE (u.*)

IoElot*r rMdq eres (us)

Fud b6bm (&Li0, b€shirqas rcsbbd

1r{0113

289 325

338 83,1

827.r01

432tr

1,6221a,

n2551

3791263
'toA8,oD

8205663

1198012

,r 299833

289325

541388

3,122,569

4,621,970

3,12,67

1.330,000

______.ryi!L

27,61,1,189

2,1$,217

1u257P)2

19116

x 122569

t$00m
333157

13417033 3122 569 2213.157 2033,361

152127 2 500 000 12.07211n

257,60€

t)r1?5t to no€i .r 02!l!4

Q? 2a6\ (19 34a 496 290 2 303 748 (3 490)

73r mr666 278 2 500 mo

The noles to the in a ncial statements aEan nle!mlpalt ofths stalemeit.

ROMAN TqRO & CO-, CSP Certlie.l Public -4c.ofitants ad Business Consulta ts

PO BOX v)43 YAUCO PR 0a69&3013 TEL /787)856 6220 F,LY. 087) 856 6233

9?0i237
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUN0S........,.......................,,... ... . ... ..

Amounts repofted for Govern mental Activities in lhe Statement of NetAssets are different because:

CapitalAssets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and therefore, are

not reported in the funds. ln the currenl pe od,lhese amounts are:

$ 14,440,484

Non Depreciable Capital Asseb......................................... .. . ........... $ 9,438,442

Depreciable CapiblAssets 58'721'488

Accumulaled Depreciation (17.329 080)

Total Capital Assets......... 50,830,850

Some liabililies are not due and payable in the cunent period and thelefore, are not leported

in the funds. Those liabililies consist of:

GeneralBondsandNotesPayable........................... (19,272,000)

Compensated Absences.. (2,630,652)

Propedy Tax Debt - Law 42....................................... (959,098)

PropertyTaxDebt-Law146................................... (158,921)

Llirs Repayment Plan..... (32,272)

Claims and Judgmenb.... (3,600,000)

State Healh lnsurance Administation ...................... (256,266)

LandtllPoslc|osuresC0sts...................................... {246.590)

TotalLong-Tem Liabilities (27,155.799)

TOTAL itET ASSETS OF GOVERNiIENTAL ACTMIES................................................. l3lt1xil35

See accompanying Notes to Basic FinancialStatements.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Centlied P blic Accotntantsand Busiftss Consultunts

PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 856'6220 F.4x: (787) 856- 33
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2()1I

_ NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS $ 5,240,247

Amounts reported for Govemmenlal Activities in $e Statement ofActivities arc different because:

- Govern menlal funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the Statement of

Aclivities lhe cosl of those assets is allocated over their estmated usefullives and repoded

as depreciatio0 expense. ln the curent period, these amounts arei

Capital Assets Addilions .. 4,557,664

Depreciation Expense...... (1.893.193)

- Excess of Capital Assets Additions over Depreciation Expense ..... . 2'664 
'471

Disposalof capitalassets require removal of cost ofthe capital assets lrom the capital asset

accounton the Stalement of Net Assets, resulting in a loss on disposal of capilal assets on

- theStalemenlofActiviies....................

Debt proceeds provide currenl financial resources to govem mental fu nds, but issuing debl

- increases long- term liabilities in the Statementof NetAssets. ln the currentperiod,

these amounts arel

Eonds and Notes Payable

- Repaymenl of debt prcceeds p ncipal is expenditure in lie governmental funds, but lhe repayment

reduces Long-Tem Liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. ln the cunentyearthe
repayments were

Repayment of long-tem pdncipalis expenditure in the governmental fu nds, butthe repayment

reduces Long-Term Liabilities in the Stalement of Net Assets. ln lhe cu.rentyear, the

_ repayments werel

17,u1)

(3,045 000)

1,330,000

Property Tax oebt- Law 42....................................... 20,949

PropertyTaxDebt-1aw146.................................... 7,568

Estimated Landfill Post{losure Care C0s1................. 14,754

Compensated absences.. (9,123)

claims and Judgments..... (3,335,000)

Lll\4S Repayment Plan ..... 61774
TotalAdditionalExpenditures................................... {3,239.078)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES $ 2,943?99

See accompanying Notes lo Basic FinancialStatements

ROILAN TORO & CO., CSP Certilied Public Accotntants a d Business Co sultdnts

Po BOX 3A$ YAUCO PR 00698-301J TEL. (787)856-6220 FAX: (787) 8s6 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS. PROPRIETARY FUNO

June 30, 20i1

Business-type

Aclivities
ASSETS:

CunentA!sek:
Cash

l\liscellaneous prepaid expenses

Total cufienl assets

Restricled Assels:

Restricled cash

CapitalAssels:

Land

Buildinq and olher depreciable assels,

Total capilal assels

Other assets

nel oI accumulaled deprectation

111.135

3.469

114 604

491 290

58,350

1,329.442

1 387 792

17.554

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES:

Currenl Liabiliiies:

It4ortgage payable

Accounls payable- 30 days

Accrued llabilities

Tenant security deposils

Tolal current liabilities

Non-current liabllilies

l4ortgage payable

Totalliabilities

NET ASSETS

lnvesled in CapilalAssels, Net of Related oebl

Restricted deposits

U n reslricted

2,011,240

93.987

15 868

14,266

13,224

137,U5

862,125

999.470

431,680

491,290

88,800

Tolal nel assels

Total Liabilities and Net Assets

1,011770

See accompanying noles to basjc financial slatements

RO|L4N TORO & CO., CSP CeniJie.l Public Accontants a d Business ConsuLans
PO Box 3043 yAUCo PR M698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856 622t) F,,,"\: (787) sj6- 13

2,011,240
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES. PROPRIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2011

Bu3iness-type

Activities

REVENUES

Rent

Other

Tolal revenues

EXPENSES

Adminislrelive

Utililies

Operaling and mainlenance

Tares and insuIan@

Depreciation

Total expenses

Operaling income

NON OPERAIING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

lnterest received

lnlerest on mo(gage

Tolal non operating revenues (expenses)

Net Change in l{et Agsets

NetAssets, Beginning oI Year, as reslaled

NETASSETS, ENO OF YEAR

616,8S3

2,065

618,958

150,67s

18,9M

152,793

47,297

150,667

520,336

98,622

8,878

(69,256)

(60,378)

38,244

973,526

1,011,770

See accompanying notes to basic llnancial statemenls

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CertiJiel Public Accostanls a d Business Consultatts
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPRIETARY FUI'ID

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENOED JUNE 30,2011

Bu3iness.type

Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash receiled from tenants and HUD

Ohercash recei\,ed

619,649

2,065

621,714

Ad m inistrali!e

Managementbes
Salades and wages

Ulililies

Operaling and mainbnance
lViscellaneous taxes and insurance

Net cash provded byoperatjng actj\ilies

CASH FLOWFROM CAPITALAND RELATEO

FINANCING ACTIUTIES

lnlerest paid in capihldebt

Morqage principal palrnent

Purchase of capilal asseb

Netcash used in capital and relabd financing acti\,ities

CASH FLOU,S FROi'l lNIESTING ACTIVITIES

Deposibto reser'e br replacement and inlerest relained in accounl

lnterest on inlestrnent

Deposibb and inbrcsteamed and retained forinsurance escrow

Wfi drawal from insurance account

Netcash used in in\,esIng aclir,ilies

Netincrease in cash

Cash at beginning oflear

Cash at end of )ear

(36,282)

(48,960)

(117,318)

(18,904)

197 ,7 43)
(47,661)

(366,868)

254,846

(69,862)

(90,861)

(35,258)

(195,981)

(34,916)

8,878

(24,636)

21,052

(29,622)

29,243

81,892

111,135

Continue

ROIIAN TORO & CO CSPCe ilied Puhlit -4ccot t.t ts an.lBusnkss ConsLhans
PO ROX J013 YAUCO PR 0A698 t013 . TEL. /787) 856 622A FLY. t7E7) L\56-6)31
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUND
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

(coNTtNUED)

RECOI{CILIATION OF OPEMTING INCOME TO

CASH FLOIII/S FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operaling income

Adjusbnentio reconcile change in nel assels lo

netcash pro\ided byoperaling aclivities:

Depreciation

(lncrease) decrease in:

Recei\cbles

I\riscellaneous prepaid expenses

Tenant secudty deposits

lncrease (decrease) in:

Accounts payable- 30 days

Payroll

Tenantsecudtydeposib

Net cash provided byoperating activlies

98,622

150,667

1,480

93

(132)

5,718

(1,734)

132

156,224

254,846

See accompanying notes to basic financia statements

ROlL,t-Y TORO & CO., CSP CeftiJied Public Accooltakts a .l Busihess Consultants
PO ROX 3043 yAUCO PR 00698-3013 . TEL t787) 85G6220 FAX: (787) 856 6213
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE I - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Municipality of San Sebastian, Puefto Rico (Municipality) is a local govemmefltal with full legislative, fiscal and
administrative power 10 opeEte as a govemmental under Law No. 81 of August 30, i991, as amended, known as tte
Autononous Municipalry Act of lhe Conmonweafth of Pueno Rico (Law No. 81).

The lllunicipalily's governmental system consisls of executive and leqislative bEnches. The Constitution of the Commonwealth
of Puerto Rico (the 'Commonwealth') prcvides for $e sepaEtion of powers of lhe executive, legislative and judicial branches.
A l\,iayor, elected every four years by $e cilizens, exercises lhe executive power ol fie lly'unicipality. The legislative power is
exercised by lhe l\runicipal Legislature, which is also elected every lout yea.s. The General Juslice Court System of he
Commonwealth, which hasjurisdiction overthe i,4unicipality, exercises thejudiciary power.

The Liunicipality assumes responsibility fol providing services to its citizens related to public hoosing, welfare, public safety,
health, sanitation, educatio0, cullure, recrealion, urban development, and many other generaland administrative duties.

The accounting policies of he Municipality conform to accounting principles generally accepted in he lJnited States of America
as applicable to governmental units. The followlng is a summary of the more signilicant policies.

The accompanyjng basic ,inancial statements of the lvunlcipality have beeD prepared in conformity with aclounting principles
generally accepted in fie Uniled Slates of America (GMP) as prescribed by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). The GASB is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and fnancial repoding. The GASB pefiodically
updates ils codification of the eristing Governmental Aclounting and Financial Reporting Standards which, along with
subsequent GASB pronouncements (Siatemenls and lnterpretatio0s) constitutes GAAP ,or governmental units.

ln Juoe 1999, GASB issued Stalement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Managenent's Discussion and Anatysis - for
State and LocalGovemnerts (GASB No. 34). This statement established new fnancial rcporling requirements for state and
local governments. On July 1, 2003, lhe l.4unicipality adopted the provisions of GASB No. 34 as well as other statements
referred lo below.

The accompanying basic linancial statements presenl he fnancial position and the results of operations ofhe lvlunicipality and
its various funds and fund types. The basic financial statements are presented as of June 30, 2011, and forfie fscalyearlhen
ended. The more signifcant of these accounting policies are described below and, where appropriate, subsequent
Pronouncemenls will be refercnced.

According to the fnancial reportjng model established by GASB No. &, the minimum required linancial statement presentation
applicable to $e [,4unicipality is composed of the following elements: (1) governmentwide financial statements (GWFS), (2)
governmenlal tund fnancial statements (GFFS), i3) notes to basic fnancial statements, and (4) required supplementary
information (RSl).

The required supplementary infomation, which consists of a management discussion and analysis (MD&A), is infomation
presented along with, but separate hom, tte l\,4unicipality's basic financial statements. The l\.4D8A is a narative rcport that
introduces the accompanying basic fnancial stalemenls and provides an analytical overview of lhe Municipality's fnancial
activities for he year ended June 30, 2011, based on the [runicipality's knowledge ol lhe transactions, events and conditions
reflecled in the basic fnancial statements. The MD&A also highlighls cetuin key fscal policies that control the l\,4unicipality's
operations.

RO^LAN TORO & CO., CSP Ce iJied Public Accootatus an.l Business Consukonts
PO DOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698 1013 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX_. 087) 856-6211
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF S|GN|FTCANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTT UED)

As previously mentioned, on July 1, 2003, olher statements and interprelations were also adopted in conjuflction and
simultaneously with GASB N0.34. Those slatements and interpretations are: (1) GASB Slatement No.33 - Accounlng and
nnancial Repoting fu Nonexchange lransacflons, (2) GASB Statement No. 37 - Basic Financial Statenents - and
Managenent's Discussion and Analysis - lot State and Local Govemnenls: Ornibus, (3) GASB Statement No. 38 - Certain
Financial Stdenent Note Diisc/osures and (4) GASB lntepretation No.6 - Recognition and Measurenent of Celain Liabitities
and Expendilures in Govemnenlal Fund Financial Statenenls-

GASB No. ?,4 also required fial the accounting for all govemmenlal activities reported in he GWFS be based on applicable
pronouncements issued by the Financial Accountjng Standards Board (FASB) and its predecessor bodies, such as the
Accounting Principles Board (APB), issued on or before November 30, '1989, provided those pronouncements do not co0flict
wilh or contradict GASB pronouncements. Accodingly, in conjunction and simultaneously with the adoption ofGASB N0.34,
the ltlunicipality also adopted the following pronouncements: (1) APB Opinion N0.20 - Accounting Changes, (2) ApB Opinion
No. 21 - /nteresf o, Receivfrles and Payables, (3) FASB Stalement No.5 - Accounting fot Contirgercles and (4) FASB
Statement No. 16 - Ptiot Period Adiustnents. The [4unicipality has elected to not apply all statements and interpretations
issued by FASB after November 30, 1989.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTIW

The accompanying basic fnancial statements include all departmenls and organizations units whose {unds are under the
custody and cofltrol oflhe [,lu0icipality. ln evalualing the [4unicipality as a rcporting entity, management has addressed alllhe
potential component unils. The decision to include any potential component unit in lhe reporting entity was made by applying
he provisions of GASBS No. 14, The Financial Reponing Entily, as amended by GASB 39, Deternining Whethet Ceftain
Organizalions arc Conponent Units - an Anendnent of GASB 14.

The basic crileria for including a potenlial component unit wilhin the reporting entity is il potenlial component units are llnancially
accountable and other legally sepalate organizations for which the [4unicipality is not inancially accountable but the nature and
signilicaoce of their relationship with the Municipality may be such that exclusion of the frnancial stalements from those of the
l\,lunicipality would cause the accompanying basic financial statements to be misleading or incomplete. Accordingly, a legally
separale organization would be reported as a component unil of lhe l\runicipality if all of the following criteria are met:

. The lrayor appoints a voting majodty of an organization's governing body and, either (1) the l.4unicipality has the ability
to impose i1s willon thatoeanization or (2)the organization has the potentialto provide specilic financial benefits to, or
impose specilic linancialburdens on the ltlunicipality.

. The economics resources, for which the l,lunicipality is entitled, eilher received or held by the separate organization,
are entirely or almost entircly fo. the direcl benefit ofthe ltlunicipality or its constituents.

The Municipality's management has concluded lhat based on tie aforementioned criteria, $ere arc no legally separate entities
or organizalions that should be reporled as @mponent unils of the Municipality lor lhe fscal year ended June 30, 2011.
Accordingly, these basic financial stalemenls presentonly the i.lunicipality as lhe rcporting entity.

These fnancial statemenb presenl the respective financial posilion of lhe governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information oflhe L,lunicipality, as ofJune 30, 2011, and the respeciive changes in fnancial position,
wherc applicable, thereolfor the fiscalyear then ended.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP Cetuilied Public Accot&ta ts an.l Bustuess Consultantr
Po Rox 301J YAUCO PR 00698 3043 . TEL. (787) 856 6220 F,LY: (787) 856-6233 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEEASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG poLtClES (CONTTNUED)

B. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The governmenlwide linancial statements (the Statement of Net Assets and the Slatement of Activilies) are reporled using lhe
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a ljability is incuned, regardless of the timing ol related cash flows. Granl and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon aS alleligibility requirements have been met.

GOVERNMENTALFUND FINANCIALSTATEMENTS

The governmental fund fnancial slatements are reported using the curenl fnancial resources measuremenl focus and tte
modified accrual basis ofaccounling. Revenues are recorded when susceptible to accrualt as soon as it is both measurable and
available.'Available" means collectible within the curenl period orsoon enough thereafler, normally within sixty (60)days, to be
used lo pay liabilities ofthe cufient period. Expenditures are generally recognized when the related liability is incured.

The exceplion 1o lhis general rule is the principal and interest on general obligation long-term debt and compensated abse0ces,
ifany, are recognized when due.

ln applying the 'susceptible to accrual' concept lo inleEovernmental revenues (federal grants) pursuant lo GASBS No. 33,
Accounting and Financial Repaiing fot Non-exchange Iransactions (the l\,lunicipality may act as either provider o. recipient),
the provider should recognize liabililjes and expe0ses and lhe recipient should recognize receivables and revenue wheo the
applicable eligibility requiremenls including time requiremenls, are met. Resources lransmitted before the eligibility requirements
are met should, !nder most chcu mstances, be reporled as advances by the provider and defened revenue by the recipie0t.

There are essentially two types of revenue. For some grants, funds must be expended by the l!y'unicipality on the specific
purpose or proiect before any amounls will be reimbu.sed. Revenue is, therefore, recognized as expenditurcs are incurred to
the extent available. For lhe other revenue, moneys are virtually unreslricled and are generally revocable only for failure to
comply with prcscribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenue al the time of receipt or earlier if
lhe susceplible to accrual c teria is met

Expenditurcs are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. l\y'odirlcations to the accrual basis
of accounling include the following:

.4. Employee's vesled annual vacation and sick leave is recorded as
annual vacation and sick leave unpaid at June 30, 2011, has
statements.

C. FINANCIALSTATEMENTPRESENTATION

expenditure when utilized. The amount of accumulated
been reported only in the governmenlwide financial

The basic linancial statements include both government-wide (based on the Municipality as a whole) and fund financial
statements. While the previous fnancial reporling modelemphasized fund types (the totalofallfuods ofa particular type), in the
new financial model the locus is on either the Municipality as a whole, or malor individual funds (within lhe basic {inancial
statements). Both the govemment-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic linancial slatements) categorize primary
activities as eilher governmental or business type.

ROLLAN TORO A CO., CSP Ceiilied Publit AccoMta,tsand Business Consultants
PO BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-1041 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 F.4X: t787) 856 623J 

26



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NoTE't - SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENT.wlDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemmeni'wide fnancial slatements (the Statemenl of Net Assels and the Stalemenl olActivities) report information ofall
the aclivities of the lt unicipality. FoI most part, the ef{ect of interfund activity has been removed from hese government-wide
fna0cial statemenls. Govemmental activilies, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovemmental revenues, are
reported separalely from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extenl on fees and charges forsupport.

The focus of he Statement ol Net Assets is designed to be similar to bottom line results for lhe l\runicipality and ils
governmenlal aclivities. This statement, fol the frst time, combines and consolidates governmental fund's currcnt linancial
resources (short-term expendable resources)with capitalassets and long-term obligalions.

The Statementol Net Assets presents the repo(irg entities'assets and liabilities, wilh the difference reported as netassets. Net
assets are reported in three categoriesi

.:. lnvested in Calital Asset6. Net of Related Debt - These consisls ol capital assets, 0el of accumulated depreciation and
amortization, and reduced by outslanding balances for bonds, notes, aod other debt that are attributed to lhe acquisilion,
construction, or improvement oflhose assets.

':' Restricled Net Assets - These results when constrainls are placed on net assets use, which can be either extemally
imposed by creditors, grantors, conlributors, and he like, or imposed by law through constilutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

* Unrestricted Nel Assets - These consists of nel assels which do not meel the delinilion ofthe two precedinq cateqories.
Unrestricted net assets often are designated, to indicate lhat managemenl does not consider them to be available for
general operations. lJnrest cted net assets often have conslraints on resources that are imposed by managemenl, but can
be rcmoved or modified.

When both restricted and unestricted resources are available for use, generally it is he l!,4unicipality's policy to use restricted
rcsources frst, then the unrestricted resources as they are needed.

The Statement of Activities is focused on both the gross afld net costs per functional category. The statement reduces gross
expeoses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, opemting aad capitalgrants. This is intended lo summa ze a0d
simplifyhe uselsanalysisof coslof various govemmenlal services.

GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fund financial stalements {the Balance Sheet and the Statemelt of Revenues, Expendilures, and Changes in Fund
Balances) are, in substance, very similar to the financial statements presented in lhe previous finaocial reporting model.
Emphasis here is on the majorfunds in the govemmentalcategory. Non-majorfunds are summarized into a sinqle column.

ROMAN TORO A CO., CSP Cenirted Public Accontan4 and Business Co suha s
PO BOX 3043 yAUCO pR 00698-3013 . TEr,. (787) 856-6220 FLy: (787) 856_6233 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIry OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMMARY 0F StcN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Traditional userc of governmental fnancial statements will find the Fund Fjnancial Statements presentation more familiar. The
focus is on l\rlajor Funds, rather than the previous fnaflcial model's fund types. The Govemmental lrajor Fund Statements ate
presented on cunent financial resou rces and modmed accrualbasis ofaccounting.

This is the mannel in which these funds are normally budgeted. This presentatio0 deemed most appropriate lo (a) demonstrate
legal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate the source and use of liquid resources, and (c) demonstrate how he
Itlunicipality's actual experience conforms to the budgeted iscalplan.

Since the governmental fund statemenb are preseflted in a different measurement focus and basis of accounling than lhe
govenment-wide stateme0ts, reconciliation is presented and a separate explanation foreach differences.

The lt unicipality repods ils frnancial position (Balance Sheet) and results of operalions (Statement of Revenues, Expenditues
and Changes in Fund Balance) i0 funds, which are considered separate accounting entities. The operations of each fund are
accounted for within a set of seltbalancing ac@unls. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended purpose
and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with legal, ,inancial, and contractlal provisions.

The new model as defined in GASBS No. 34 established criteria (percentage of he assets, liabilities, revenues, or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category in the govemmenlal fund) for the detemination of major funds. The non-major
funds are combined in a single column in the fund linancial shtements. The l\ilunicipality reports the following majorfunds:

Genoral Fund - This is the genenl operating fund of the Municipality. lt is used to account for all fnancial resources,
exceptthose required lo be accounted for in anolherfu0d.

Head Start Fund - This is the fund used to account for alltEnsaclions oflhe Head Sla( Program. The objectives of
this progEm are to provide comprehensive health, educational, nulritional, social and other developmental seNices
primarily to economically disadvantaged pre-school children and infants and toddlers so that the children will attain
school readiness.

Debt Service Fund - This is he fund used to account for the accumulation of resources for and the payment ol
general long{erm debl principal, interest, and related costs.

State Assiqnment Fund This is lhe fund used to account for all the transactions of the State Assignments by
Legislature Resolutions. The prima ly objectives of this assignment is the development of conslruction projects on
communilies.

Loans Fund - This is the fund used to account for all financial resources and tansactions relaled to lhe loans for
construclion purposes and capital outlays of he i/unicipality, which is financed by loans lrom the Governmenl
Development Bank of Puerto Rico.

GASBS No. 34 eliminates the presentalion of Account Groups, but provides for lhese records lo be maintained and incorporales
lhe information into the Govemmental column in the Governmenlwide Stalement of NetAssets.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ce iled Public Accontants and Business Consuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMMARYOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIALREPORTINGPRESENTATION

The accounts of he lrunicipality are organized ofl the basis of funds, each if which is considered a separate accounting entity.
The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set ol self-balaacing accounts that comprise its assets, l[bililiea,
fund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types arc as follows:

General Fund - ls the general operating lund of the i.4unlcipality. lt is used to account for all govemmenlal activity,
except those required to be accouoted for in anotherfund.

SDecial Revenue Fund- This is the fund used to account for revenues de ved from localfunds, state grants or other
restricted revenue sources. The uses and limitations of each spcial revenue fund are specified by l/unicipality
ordinan@s or slate statutes.

Debt Service Fund - This is the fund used to account for the accumulation of resour@s for afld the payment ol
general long-term debt principal, interest, and related costs.

Capital Proiec'ts Fund - This is the fund used to account for financial resources used lor the acquisition or
conslruction of major capital lacilities. The uses and limitalions of each capital projects fund are specilied by
Itluflicipality ordinances or state statutes.

E. FUND BALANCES

ln the cunenl year, the Municipality adopted the provisiofls of GASB Statement No. 54, Furd Balance Repoiing and
Govennental Fund lype De,tniiors (GASB 54), which enhanced lhe usefulness of fund balance information by providing
clearer fund balaflce classifications that can be more consistently applied. This stalement establishes fund balance
classificatioos that compise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the Authority is bound lo obserue conslraints
imposed upon the use of resources reported in govemmental funds.

Pursuant to lhe provisions of GASB 54, the fund balances amounts are reporled as non-spendable, estricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned, based on the relative strength of he conslraints that conlrol how specifc amounls can be spent, as
described as follows:

l!gEp!!d!h!g - Represent resources that cannol be spent readily with cash orare legally or contractually required nol to
be spent including but not limited to inventories, prepaid items, long{erm balances of loans and notes receivable.

Restricled - Represent resources thal can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitutional provisions,
extemal .esource providers (efernally imposed by crcditors or grantors), or through enabling legislation (that is, legislation
lhat creates a new reveflue source and restricts ils use). Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only wilh the
consent of resource prcviders.

* egloitCq - Represent resources used for specific purposes, imposed by formal action of the enlity's highest ievel oI
decision making aulhority (l!y'unicipal Legislature through resolutions and ordifiances) and can only be changed by similar
law, ordinance or rcsolution, no laterthan the end ofthe ilscalyear.

RO^LAN TORO 3, CO., CSP CetiJied Public lccot tants and Bksiness Consultants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NorE I - SUMMARYOF StcN|FICANT ACCOUNING pOLtCIES 
{CONTTNUED)

E. FUND EALANCES (CONTINUED)

* Algiglld - Represelt resources intended lo be used by lhe l\runicipality for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria
to be classilied as restricted or committed (generally executive orders approved by the i.4ayo0. lntent can be expressed by
the l4unicipal Legislature, the l\4ayor or by an olficial or body to which the Municipal Legislature detegates autho ty in
conformity with Autonomous Municipalities Act of Pue(o Rico, as amended. ln governmenlal funds other than the general
fund, assigned fund balance rcpresents the remaining amountthal js not restricted orcommited.

'a' Unassiqned - Reprcsenl the residual classilication for the [runicipality's general fund and includes all spendable amounts
not contained in the other classillcations. ln other funds, lhe unassigned classilicalion is used only to report a deficit
balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amo!nts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

At June 30, 20'11, the accompanying fund financial statements reporled fund balances as restricted, assigned and unassigned.

F. BUDGETARY DATA

The i,lunicipality annually adopts the Budget Resolution for all operating funds of the Municipality ercept for certain restricled
accounts of Proprietary Funds and Special Revenue Funds. Budgetary control is legally maifltained at ihe fund level. The
budget is preparcd using the modified accrual basis of accounting with encumbrance included as budgetary basis expenditures.
The ltlunicipallty's Budget Resolulion provides transfer authority (1) to the Mayor and the i,4anagement and Budget Director,
within and between depadments and funds, as long as the total budget of the [runicipality (net ol interlund transfe.s) is not
increased; i2) lo the [ranagemeot and Budget Director lo implement grant budgets as the granl applications are accepted by
the Mlnicipality; and (3) lo the l\4anagemeflt and Budget Director to amend (re-appropriate) each new yeals budget, to the
extent of outstanding enctimbrances, and/or unexpended projecugrant apprcpriations at year end. [.iunicipality's Legislature
aclion is required for (1) use of lhe budgeted Legislature contingency, and (2) the approval of supplemental approp alions
Duri0g the year, seveml supplemental appropdations were flecessary.

The budgel columns (original and final budgeis) of the Budgetary Comparison - General Fund reflect fie ofiginal budqet and
the amended budget (which have been adjusted for legally authodzed revisions of the annual budgets during ltle year).
App.op atiolls, except remaining project appropriations, encumbrances, and unexpended grant approp.iations, lapse al the end
of each frscalyear.

Amendments 10 the budget, including tnnsfers, require the approval oflhe l\y'unicipal Legislatore. Unencumbered appropdations
lapse at lhe end ofthe next liscalyear. The l\runicipality foilows lhese procedures, in accordance with law, in o.der to establish
lhe budgetary data reflected in the basic financial statements:

l. Prior of ltlay 31 of each fiscal year, the l\4ayor submits to he lt4unicipal Legislature a proposed budget for the fiscal year
commencing the lollowing July 1 in addition of a budget message;

ROLUN IORO A CO., CSP CetiJied Public Accomtants an.l Busi ess Consuha s
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

_ NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF S|GN|F|CANT ACCOU TTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

F. BUDGETARY DATA (CONTINUED}

- 2, The budget document is available for public inspection prior to its approval by the lvtunicipal Legislalure;

3. The Commissioner of lvlunicipal Affairs examines the budget to verify if it complied with the law's skndards and sends it to
- the l\4ayor for any comments or recommendation before lhe limibd date establishes by tle Law;

Plior to June 13, $e annual budget is legally enacted through passage of lhe annual appropriation ordinance;

5. lf a budget is not adopted prior to the end of the end of lhe fscalyear, lhe annual budget for the preceding fiscal year, as
approved by the Lrunicipal Legislature and the Mayor, is automatically renewed for lie ensuing fiscal year until a new

- budget is apprcved. This permits the l\4unicipality to continue making payments for its oprating and olher expenses until
he new budget is approved;

_ 6. Subsequent to lhe enactment of the annual appropriation ordinance, the i.ilunicipal Legislature has the aulhority to make
necessary amendments made during the fscal year and are refected in lhe budget information included in the Budgetary
Compadson Schedule - General Fund;

- 7. Budgetary data for the Special Revenue Fund has not been presented in the accompanying basic fnancial statements as
such funds are budgeled over the life ofthe respective granl or prcject and flot on an annualbasis.

- Since the budgetary basis dilfers lrom accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), aclual
amounts for he General Fund in he accompanying Budgetary Comparison Schedule, is presented on the budgetary basis to
enhance comparability.

The principal differences between the budgetary and GAAP bases are the following:

- 
'1. Encumbrances are recorded as expenditures under the budgel,ary basis and as a reseNe of fund balances under GAAP.

2, The non+xonerated portion of fie property tax advances are presented as revenue in the budgetary basis and as other

_ financing sources uflder GMP.

3. lnterfund tEnsactions ofthe Generaland Special Revenue Funds are not included in the budgetary basis.

- 4. Cedain accrued liabililies and otherdebts are not included in the budgetary basis.

_ 
5. Certain revenues susceptibleto accrual, i.e., both measurable and available, are not included in the budgetary dala.

All encumbrance appropriations in fie operaling budget lapse at he end of the fscal year. Property taxes collected durinq the
current year by the Llunicipal Revenue Colleclion Ceflter (Fiscal Agent) are pesented as revenues in the accounting basis but

- are notconsidered in the budgetary schedule.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NoTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

F. BUDGETARY DATA (CONTINUED)

The specialfunds of the Special Revenue Fund have not been included in the budgetary comparison because balances are not
budgeted. Also, the budget prepared for the Federal Finance Awards Programs included in the l\rajor and Non L.lajor Funds is
based on a plogram period which is nol oecessarily a year. Accordingly, it's not plactical to present an annual comparisofl of
budget for such programs.

G. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENT AND INVESTMENT

The Finance Director of lhe [4unicipality is responsible for investing t]e availabb resources in certificates of deposil and other
short{erm inveslments. lnvestments are made from the available combined funds of the l!,,lunicipaiity and, accordingly, it is not
practical to disclose certifcates of deposit and other short-term investments individually by fund in the combined fnancial
statements. lnterest earned on certificates of deposil a0d olher short-term investments are recognized as rcvenue in the
General Fund. Cash in the Specjal Revenue, Debt SeNice and Capital Project Funds are restdcted; accordingly, resources
available were not used for pool investments.

Under the laws and regulations ofthe Commonweallh, public funds deposited by the [runicipality in commercial banks must be
fully collaleralized for tle amounts deposited in excess of the federal depository iflsurance generally provided by he Federal
Deposit lnsulance Corporation (FDIC). All securities pledged as coltateral are held by agents designated by he
Commonweallh's Secretary ofthe Treasury, but not i0lhe ltlunicipality's name.

Cash with frscal agent reprcsents property tax collections retained by the l,4unicipal Revenues Collecljon Center and
undisbursed proceeds of cerlain bonds, loans or grants which are maifltained in a cash cuslodian account by he Gove.nment
Developmenl Bank ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico.

Cash balance recognized in the Debt Service Fund is restricted for the paymenl of the l\,4unicipality's obligalions, and others are
reslricled for speciic projects, slch as the acquisition or construction of permanent improvements. The sinking fund is
maintaifled by the Govemmental Development Bank of Puerto Rico, agency which acts as the insurer and payer of the
i.4unicipaliiy's bonds and notes issued in accordance with law.

H, RECEIVABLES

Receivable are stated net of estimated allowances for uncollectible accounls, which are determined upon pasl collection
experience and cualent economic condjtions. Receivable frcm Federal Government represents amounts owed to the
Itlunicjpality for reimbursement of expend itures incuned pursuant lo federally funded programs.

I. INVENTORIES

The General, Special Reveoue and Capital Project Funds, purchases office and printing supplies, gasoline, oil and other
expendable supplies held for consumption. The cosl ol purchases is recorded as expenditure in the appropriate fund and lhe
inventory is nol recorded in the basic ,inancial stalements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMMARY OF STGNTF|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

- Property, plant and equjpmenl purchased or acquired is carried at histodcalcost orestimated histo.icalcost. Contributed assets
arc recorded at lail market value as of the dale received. Other costs incured for repairs and mainlenance is expensed as

_ incurcd.

Depreciation on allassets is prcvided on the slraight-line basis overthe following estimated usefullives:

- CapitalAssets Yearc

Buildings and building improvemenls 20-50

_ lnfraslructure
Vehicles and equipment
Furniture and fixlures

25-50

5-20
5-10

K. LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

- The liabilities reported in the govemmeflt-wide financial statemenls included general and special obligation bonds and notes,
and other long-term liabilities, such as vacation, sick leave, liligation, long-lerm liabilities to other governmental entities.

_ ln the fund financial statements, govemmentalfund types recognize bond issuances cosl, during lhe cunent period. The face
amount of debt issued is reported as other fnancing sources, while bond issuance costs, whether or not withheld ftom the
actualdebt proceeds received, are reported as expendilures.

- L. COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Municipality accrues accumulated unpaid vac€tion and sick leave and associated employee-related costs when eamed (or

- estimated to be eamed) by the employee. The l\4unicipality's employees are g.anted 30 days of vacations and 18 days of sick
leave annually. Vacations may be accumulated up to a maximum of sixty (60) days and sick leave up to a maximum of ninety
(90) days. ln lhe event of employee resignation, SE employee is paid for acclmulaled vacation days up to he maximum

- allowed. Separation lrom employment prior to use of all or pa( of the sick leave terminates all rights for compensation, except
foremployees with ten years of service who are entitled to sick leave pay up lo lhe maximum allowed. The l\y'uflicipality accrued
a liability for compensaled absences, which meet the following criteria:

* 't. The Municipality's obligation relating to employee's rights to receive compensation for future absences is attributable to
employee's seruices already rendered.

- 2. The obligation relates to rights that vest or accumulate.

3. Paymentofthe compensation is probable.

- 4. The amount can be reasonably eslimated.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE't - SUMMARY OF StGNtFtCAtiT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

L. C0 PENSATEDABSENCES(C0NTtNUED)

ln accordance with the above criteda and requirements as established by GASBS No. 16; lhe [.,lunicipality has accrued a liabitity
for compensated absences, which has been eamed but not laken by lrunicipality's employees. For he governmenlwidi
statemenls, the current portion is ihe amount estimated lo be used in the lollowing year. For lhe gove.nmental funds
statements, all of the compensaled absences are considered long-term and therefore, are not a fund liability and represenls a
reconciling item betweeo the fund leveland governmenlwide presentations.

The following is a summary ofchanges in the balance of Compensated Absences for the fscal year ended June 30, 2011.

BAIAIICE
JULY1.2010 t{EW|SSUES

LL621129

RETIREMEIITS

A}IDCURREilT
MATURATES

$ 177.023

BALAIICE
JU E 30,20r1

9 r.630.652

CURRENT LONG.TERM
PoRTroN 80EIl9!

$ r60J-67 S 227!.485

M. INSURANCE

The lrunicipality has insurance coverage for its public tacilities, primarily to provide proteclion from c€tastrophic losses. Also,
principal oflicials ofthe lty'unicipality are covered under various surety bonds. The Secrekry ol the Treasury Departme0t of the
Commonweallh of Puerto Rico is the agent commissioned to place all of the f,4unicipality's insurance coverage. Corresponding
premiums payable are withheld by the l.4unicipal Revenue Collection Center from quarterly advances of ann ual property tax ard
subsidy send to the ltlunicipality

N. INTERFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterfund lransactions are rcflected as loans, reimbursements or lransfers. Loans are repoded as receivables and payables as
appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidatioo. Reimbursemerts occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges lhe
appropriate beneliting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund tEnsactions are treated as
transfers. Transfers between governmental or poprietary funds are netted as part of lhe reconciliatio0 to the govemment-wide
cllumnar presentation. The Municipality has the following types ofreciprocaland nonreciprocalintedund activities:

* lnterfund loans - Represent amounts provided with a requirement for repayment, which are recorded as "due frcm' in lhe
lender governmental fund and "due to' in the borrower governmental fund. lnterfund receivables, which ae not considered
currenlly available fnancial resources, are reported as advances. For amouots flot expecled to be collecled within a
reasonable period, interfund receivables/payables are reduced to the estimaled realizable value and lhe amounl that is not
expected to be repaid is reported as a transfer from the governmental fu nd that made the loan.

* lnlerlund transfers - Represenl flows of assels (permanent .eallocation of fflancial resources among govemmental
funds) without equivalent flows of assets in retum and wjthout a rcquiremenl lor repayment. Ttansfers are reported as
other frnancing uses h the governmental fund making tra0slers and as other financing sources in the governmental fund
receiving transfers.

* lnterlund reimbursements - Represent rcpayments from lhe govemmentalfund responsible for particu lar expend itures or
expenses lo lhe governmental fund lhal initially paid for them.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RJCO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY 0F S|GN|F|CANT ACCOUNTTNG pOLtCtES (CONTTNUED)

O. CLAIMS AND JUDGMEI{TS

The estimated amount of the liability for claims and judgments, il any, which is due on demand, such as ftom adjudicated or
settled claims, is recorded in lhe General Fund. The Long-Term Liabilities includes an amou0t estmated by the extemal
counselorc of the lrunicipality as a contingent liability or liabilities with a fxed or expected due date, which will requke future
available fnancial resources for ils payment.

P. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity wilh accounting principles gene.ally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that aflect the reported amounts of assels and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic fnancial statements and tfie reported
revenue and expenses during $e rcporting pe od. Actual result could differ from ihose eslimates.

Q. ACCOUNTING FOR PENSION COSTS

For the purpose of applying he requirements of GASB Slatement No.27, Accounting for Pensius by Slate and Local
Govannent Enployerc (GASB No. 27), amended by GASB Statement No. 50, Persio, D/sc/osures. The i,runicipalily accounts
for pension costs from tie standpoint of a participant in a multiple€mployer coslsharing plan. Accordingly pension costs
rccognized in lhe accompanying basic financial statements are equal to the stalutorily required contribulions, with a liability
recorded for any uflpaid required conlributions. The state govemment of the Commonwealth ol Pue(o Rico is considered to be
the sponsor of the Employees' Retircment System of the Govemment of Pue(o Rico and its lnstrumentalilies (ERS) and
System 2000, a multi-employer coslsha ng defned berEfit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, respectively, in
which lhe employees of the l.4unicipality participate. The [4unicipality is considered a parlicipant and not a spoosor, of these
retirement systems since he majority ol the parlicipants in fie aforemertioned pension trust funds are employees of lhe
Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the basic fnancial slatemenls of such retirement systems are part ofthe fflancial repo.ting
entity of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly, no portion of the net pension obligation (NPO) related to ERS has
been allocated to the lrunicipality in the accompanying basic fnancial slatements. The basic financial statements of the
Commonweallh ol Puerto Rico eport lhe total amount of the rct pension obligation of ERS, i0cluding any amount lhal may
conespond to the L,lunicipality.

The [runicipality accounts for pension costs from tle standpoint ol a partbipant in a multiple-employer cost sharing plan.

Accordingly, penslon cosls recogflized in the accompanying basic frflancial statements are equal to the statutorily required
contributions, with a liability recorded forany unpaid required contdbutions.

R. RISK FINANCING

The lvlunicipality canies commercial insurance lo cover casualty, heft, tort claims and other losses. lnsurance policies are
negotiated by the Puerto Rico Treasury Departmentand costs are allocated among allthe i/unicipaliiies of Puerto Rico.

Cost of insurance allocated to the lrunicipality and deducted from lhe gross pmperty tax colleclions by the l.,lunicipal Revenue
Collection Ceoter ('CRll\r') for the year ended June 30, 2011 amounted to $375,706. The current insurance policies have not
been cancelled or terminated. The CRIM also deducted $307,183 for wo*ers compensalion insurance covering all municipal
emPloyees.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

- NOTE I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

- 
S, FUIURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the lollowing accounting standards that have effective dates after Jufle 30, 201'li

-*GASBStatementNo'57,oPEB|leasurcnentshyAgentEnpwersandAgentMultip/e-EmpioyerPlans,ThisStatementis
effeclive for pedods beginning after Jurc 30,2012;

- t GASB Statement No. 59. Financial lnstrunents On,,trus. This statement is effective for peiods beginning afier June 30,

2011;

- * GASB Statement No. 60, Accounrng and Fin ancial Repoting fot Sevice Concession Atrcngenents This statement is

eflective for pedods beginning afler December 31,2012;

{. GASB Slatement No. 61, fhe Financial Re@ing EnW: Onnibus- an anqldnent ol GASB Stdenents No. 14 and No.

- 34. This statement is effective for periods beginning afrer June 30' 2013;

* GASB Statement No.62, C.odifrcation of Accounting and Financial Repoting Guidance Contained in Pre'Novenbet 30,

- 1989 FIS B and AtCpA Pronouncenerls. This statement is effective for periods beginning after December 31, 2012;

, GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Repoting of Dofered Outflows of Resources, Delefied lnflows ol Resou/ces ard Nel

- Position.Ih is statement is effective for pedods beginning after December 31 , 201 2;

.! GASB Statement No. 64, Detivative lnstruments Applbation of Hedge Accounting Temination Provisions (an anqdnent

- of GASB Stalernenf No. 53). This statement is effective for periods begin ning afrer June 30, 201 3;

The Authority's management has concluded that the future adoption of these GASB Statements will not have a significant

- impacton the Authority's basic financial statements.

NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

- The lrunicipality maintains its deposits in various commercial banks located in Puerto Rico and Government Development Bank

for puerto itico (GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds related to certain grant awards are required by law to be held with

_ GDB,

The lrunicipatity adopled the provisions of GASB Statemenl No. 40 (GASB No. 40) , Deposit and lnvestnent R/sk Disc/osure, an

Anendne t; GASB Statenent No. 3. This statement requires that state and local governments disclose essential risk

- irlformation about deposils and investmenb. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credit risk, (2) interest rate

isk, (3) custodialcredit risk, (4) foreign exchange exposure
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NOTE 2 - CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

glCdiuig - This is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investmenlwill not fulfillits obligations. ln compliance

-h 

the laws and regulations ofthe commonwealth, $e tvunicipatity has adopted, as it's custodialand credit risk policy, the

Statenenl ol lnvesfient cuidelines for ffe Govemnent of the Connonwealth of Puerto Rico. Accordingly the ['lunicipality

invests only in obligations of the Commonwealth, obligations of the United States of America, c€rtificates of deposits,

commerciai paper, bankers' acceptances, or in pools olobligatioas ol lhe municipalities ol Puerto Rico, which are managed

by GOS. According to the aforemefltioned investrnent guidelines, the l!,lunicipality does not invest in marketable securities or

any types of invesiments for which credit sk exposurc may be signiicant. Therefore, the l.4unicipality's management has

co;cLded that the risk related to any possibte loss related to delaults by commercialbanks on lhe lrunicipality's deposits is

mnsidered low at June 30.2011.

lnteregt rate risk -This is the skthatchanges in interest rates ofdebt investments will adversely affect the fairvalue ofan

inveS entje Municipality manages its eiposure to declines in fak values by: (1) not including debt investmenls in its

investment podfotio at June 30, ZOt i, 121 timiting ttre weighted average maturity of its investmenls to three months or less,

and (3) keeping most of its bank depoiiis in interesS bearing accounts generating interests at prevailing mariet rates. At

June i0, 20'11, tne ttunicipality's investments in ceftilicates of deposits are recolded at cost, which approximales their fair

value. The.eforc, the l\4unicipality's management has coflcluded that at June 30,2011, the interesl rate risk associated with

the lrunicipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low

Custodiat credit risk - tn the case of deposits, this is lhe risk that in the event ol a bank failure, the ltlunicipality's deposits

may not le recovereO PuBuant to the Statemert of tnvestnent Guidelines fo( the Govennenl of the Connonweafth ol
puerlo Rr'co the balances deposited in commercial banks by the [.lunicipality are insured by the Federal Deposit lnsurance

Coporation (FDIC) generally u p to a maximum of $250,000 per depositor. ln addition, public funds deposiled in commerclal

banis by the lllunicipatity are tully securities ptedged as collateral arc held, in lhe l\,lunicipality's name, by lhe agents ofthe

Commonwealth's Secreiary of Treasury. Deposits wilh GDB arc uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses related

to defautts by GDB on deposit transactions have been incured by the lt4unicipality hrough June 30, 2011. Therefore, the

[,lunicipality's managemeni has concluded that at June 30, 20't1 the custodial credit risk associated with the [,4unicipality's

cash and cash equivalents is considered low.

Foreion exchanqe risk - The risk that changes in excha0ge rates will adversely affect lhe value of an investment oI a

Gpoi]i. l".orOing to th" alorementioned investment guidelines, the l,4unicipality is prevented from investing in foreign

securities or any-other types of investments in which forcign exchange sk exposure may be significant. Accordingly,

management hai concluied that lhe foreign exchange risk related to the l\,4unicipality's deposits is considered low at June

30,2011.

The [4unicipality,s bank balances in commercial banks of $4,890,948 in the General Fund, $13,500 in the Head start Fund,

$2,500,000 in tile State Assignment Fund and $3,049,691 in olher governmeatal funds, were fully collateralized at June 30,

ZO1. ine aeposits at GDB of $3,491,679 in the Debt Service Fund, $5,405,523 in Loans Fund afld $199,965 in other

governmental iunds are unsecured and uncollateralized, as no collateral is required to be carried by governmental ba0ks.

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

A, SALES AI{D USE TAXES RECEIVABLES

As described below in Note 15, the l,4unicipal Legislature approved the imposiiion of he municipal sales and use tax du ng

fscal year 2006-2007. lndividuals, organizationa and entities subject to collect the municipal sales and use tax must fle a

tax reiurn to lhe Municipality. Tax is due each 20s day oI each month based on tax collected in the preceding month.

Therefore, sales tax receivable of $173,720 in the governmental funds represents the amount due by the taxpayers at June

30,2011.
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MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

B. PROPERTYTAXESRECEIVABLES

Property taxes rcceivable in lhe other governmental funds represents debt seNice fund's advances lrom fscal year 2010-

2011, not collected by the Municipality at June 30,2011' Following isa detailoflhe property taxes receivable:

Governmental Entity Amount

l\y'unicipal Revenue Collection Center (CRllt{)

Total

$ 20.972

$ lotz

c, INTERGOVERNMENTAL RECEIVABLES

State government receivable in the olher govemmentalfunds represents expenditures incurred,

state agencies. Following is a detailofthe stale govemment receivable:

not yet rcimbu.sed by the

Description Amount

State Department of LaboF Law 52

Total $ 28^053

D, FEDERALGRANTS RECEIVABLE

Federal grants receivable in the govemmental funds reprcsent expenditurcs incurred, not yet reimbursed by the federal

agencies orthe pass-lhrough granlors. Following isa delailofthe federalgrants rcceivable:

Description Amount

$ 37,676

17,665

248,461

55,235

8,773

5,032
11.428

$ 3E4r70

E. O]HERS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

AtJune 30,2011, the Municipality maintained an accounl receivable in the General Fund from the Puerto Rico Electric Power

Authority oi$7,01i2 and olhe; miscellaneous receivabtes amounting to $2,632. ln addition, lhe Head Start Fufld and the other

govemmental funds maintained miscellaneous receivables amounting lo $808 and $2,205, respectively'

Head Stad
Public & lndian Housing

Community Development Block Grant

Homeland Security

Child Care Food Program

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re'

housing Program

Olhers

Total
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 4- DUE FROM / TO OTHER FUNDS

lnterfund receivables and payables alJune 30, 2011 are summarized as follows:

Receivable
Fund

Payable
Fund Purpose Amount

Geneal Fund

General Fund

ceneral Fund

otier Govemmental
Funds

Total

Head Start Fund

Loans Fund

Other Governmental
Funds

General Fund

Payrolland re ated accruals pard

and not reimbursed

Payrclland related accrua s paid

and nol rermbursed

Payro land rclaled accruals paid

and nol reimbursed

Cash pool n lhe same bank

4,231

750

396,965

246.392

t 6!&f,i8

NOTE5-CAPITALASSETS

A summary ofcapitalassets and changes occuning in 2011 forthe Municipality was as follows:

Govemmental Activities

Retirements, Balance

Reclassifications June30,2q!ll

Balance
July !,2010
las restated) Additions

Caprlalasset, nol be ng deprecialed

Laid
Construction in progress

Total capital aisots not being depreciated

Capital assels, being depreclaied

Buildings and bu lding improvements

Furniture and fixtures

Vehicles and equrpment

lnfrasttuclure

Tolal capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated deprecialion forl

Build ngs and building lmprovemenls

Furniturc and $dures
Vehicles and equipmenl
lnfraslructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Totalcapital assets being depreciated, net

6ovem mental activities oapitalassets, net

$ 5,737,776
2.030.906

7.768682

35,678,823
2624,592
5,458,664

12.166.055

55.928.134

(7,5S5 904)

(1,938,897)
(4,919,767)
(1.068.529)

i15.523.097)

40.405.037

t 4EJr3tl

$

2.286.600

752,460

230,906
1 011,005

893.533

2.887.904

(910.766)

\322.349)
(398,886)

1261.192\

(1.893.193)

994.711

0 3281111

$
(616.8401

1616.840)

(94,550)

(94.5501

87,214

$ 5 737,776

3.700.666

9.438.442

36,431,283
2,760,948

6,469669
13059 588

58.721.488

(8,506,670)
(2,174 036)

(5 318,653)

t1329.721],

87 210 {17.329.080)

t7.340) 41.392.408

i 1624JEO $ 50,830,850

ROMAN TORO &CO.,
PO ROX 304] YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 5- CAP|TAL ASSETS (CoNTINUED)

Depreciation expenses werc charced lo govemmental functions/programs as follows:

Gove.nmental aclivities Amount

General government

Public Safety

PublicWorks
Culture

Recrcation

Health and Welfare

Total depreciation expenses

$ 204,326

145,466

615,921

211,456
518,291

197.733

$189qll)3

A su mmary ol capital assets and changes occurring in 2011 for Villa Soigal Proiectwas as follows:

Busin.ss.type Aolivities

Retiraments/ Balance
Reclassifications June30,2011

Balance
July'1,20'10 Additions

Capitalasset. not beinq deplec ated:

Land

Tolalcapital assek not being depreaiated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Land improvements
Buildlng and building imprcvements

Building equipment
Funiturc and fixtures
Equipment

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated deprcciation for

Land implovemenls
Building and building improvemenls

Building equipment
Furnrlure and fixhrles

Equipment

Total accumulated deprecialion

Total capital assets being deprecialed, net

Governmental eclivities capital assets, net

34,891

370

$ 58.350

739,624

3.655,372
461,980

33,584

4.902.893

(523,901)

\2,682,722)
(208,152)
(32,395)

t14.872]l

(3.458.042)

1.444 851

s rl03J01

35.261

(18490)

\141,747)_

(295)

$42\
(161 074)

(125 813)

l (25-0j3)

10,40;

$ 58.350

739 624
3 655 372

496.871

33,584
12.703

4.938.154

(542,391)
(2,824,469)

\197,748)
(32,690)

111.414\

10.404 t3.608.712)

10.4M 1.329.M2

$ _ r0J{4 $_r187J92

RO^,14N TORO a CO.,
PO BOX 3O4J YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 -ACCOUNTS PAYABLE ANDACCRUED LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities in governmental fund fnancial statements represent expenditures incufied during liscal

year 2010-2611, and not paid by the lttunicipality at June 30, 2011. Following is a detail of these accounts payable and accrued

liabilities by major fund:

Accounts
Maior Governmental Funds Payable

Accrued
Liabilities Total

General Fund

Head Start Fund

Loans Fund

Other Governmental Funds

Toial

$ 242,172

47,153
62,460

675,583

$r.027.96E

$ 113,315 $ 355,487

47,753
62,460

675,583

$ r1331i $rJ41J&3

NOTE 7 - BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

As described below in Note 10, he [,lunicipality issues genelal afld special obligation bonds and notes, principally, to plovide

funds for lhe acquisition and construction of major capital facilities, to pay debt incurred in prior years, and lo cover lhe

expenditures of a special event. At June 30, 201'1, lhe governmenlwide and fund financial statements presented the following

accounts payable, regarding to the outstanding balance ofthese bonds and noles:

Description Amount

Principal

Accrued interests

Total

$ 940,000

425.129

$ 1365J29

NOTE 8- DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

As ofJune 30, 201'1, balance due to other govemmenialunils consists ofthe following:

Governmental Aqency Amount

Puerto Rico Electric Power Aulhority

General SeNice Adminislralion

Puerlo Rico Waler and SewerAuthority
i.4unicipal Revenue Collection Center

Retirement System Administratjon

Retirement System Administration-

Special Laws

Puerto Rico Departmenl ol Treasury

Puerto Rico Department of Labor

lnternal Revenue Service

Total

$ 7,081

2,514
79,668

53,255

74,199

1,463,746

3,614

4,694
45,054

uJ:!3,825

CSP Cetirted Publit Accontants a d Business Consultunts

m69iJ 3043 . TEL. (787) 856-62)A F,4-Y. 1787)8566231
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 9- DEFERRED REVENUES

A. Municipal license taxes - The deferred revenues of $1,371,655 in the General Fund relates to volume of business tax

collecled hiscalyear20l0-2011 thatwill be eamed in liscal yeal2011-2012.

B. Federal Grants - The defened revenues presented in the other govemmental funds represents he portion of federal

gEflts received for which qualifying expenditures have not been incurred. Delerred rcveflues from the federal government

are as follows:

Proqram Description Amount

Child & Adull Care Food Program

Child Care Deveopment Block Grant

Child Care (CRREET)

Otherc

Total

$ 73,086

89,551

23,055

,jr*n-

C. Others - The defurred revenues of $310,350 in lhe Genelal Fund is composed

municipal license taxes and rcnt, respectively.

NOTE 1O -GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS

Long{em liability activity for the yearended on June 30,2011, was as follows:

Govemmental Activities

of $295,924 and $14,426 from the

Beqinning
Balance Borowings

orAdditions
Payments or
0eductions

Ending
Balance

Due Within
one Year

Bonds and Noles Payable

Propedy Tax Debt - Law 42

Prcperty Tax Debt - Law 146

LlltlS Repayment Plan

Eslimated landfi ll posl{losurc
caIe cosl

Compensated absences

Claims and Judgments
Health lnsu€rce Administration

Tot.l

$ 17,557,000
980,046
166,489
94,046

261,U4
2.621,529

265,000
256 266

$ 22Nt20

$ 3,045 000 $ (1,330,000)
(20,948)

(7 568)

161,7741

$ 19 272 000
959 098
158 921

32272

246.590

2.630.652
3,600,000

256.266

$ 1,440,000
22,2U

7,568

15,492
360,167186,146

3,600,000

114,754)

\177,0231
(265,000)

$ 6,831J40 t 1r.1u?osn $ 27J1!J99 $ L!77J63

ROM1NTORO & CO,,
PO BOX )A$ YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1() - GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Business.tvDe Aclivities

Beginning
Balance

Borowings
orAddhions

Business.tvoe Activilies

Vila Soigal Project Modgage

Total

$ 1.046.973

$ 1,040p73

$ (90.861)

t t90J61t

s 956.112

L 95qr2 9 13.9!7

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE

The irunicipality issues general and special obligation bonds and noles, principally, to provide funds for

construction of major capital facilities, to pay debt incuned in prior years, and to covet the expenditures

Bonds and noles payables as ofJune 30,2011, are comprised ofthe lollowing individual issues:

lhe acquisition and

of a special event.

DESCRIPTION AI'/IOUNT

$3,420,000, Series 1996, for @nskuction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$70,000 to $315,000, excluding va able interest from 4.70% to 6.58%, through January 1,2016

$1,0'10,000, Sedes 1996, for coflstruction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 io $95,000, excluding variable interest from 4.70 to 6.58%, through January 1, 2015

$ 1 ,800,000, Se es 1 997, lor construction puQoses, payable in installments rang ing from $20,000 to

$165,000, excluding variable interest from 4.87% to 6.56%,lhrough J!ly 1, 2021

$1,510,000, Series 2001, for construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 to $135,000, excluding variable interest frcm 2.70ol" to 5.60%' ihrough July 1, 2026

$1,110,000, Series 2005, for construction purposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging lrom

$50,000 to $105,000, excluding variable interest from 3.28% to 4.80%, through January 1, 2019

$1.150,000, Se es 2007,10r construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$20,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interestlrom 1.53% to 7 00%, through July 1,2031

$185,000, Seies 2007, forconstruction purposes, payable in annual iflstallments ranging frcm

$30,000 to $65,000, excluding variable interest from 1.53% to 7 00%, through July 1, 2016

$670,000, Series 2007, for construciion purposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$75,000 to $120,000, excluding vadable interest fiom 1 53% to 6.00%, through July 1, 2013

$2,810,000, Se es 2005,I0r operational purposes, payable io annual installmenis ranging from

1,360,000

340,000

1,190,000

1,210,000

690,000

1,045,000

285,000

230,000

$225,000 to $345,000, excluding variable inlerest from 4 50% lo 5.00%, through !!!y l.?q1

ROM.IN TORO &CO.,
PO ROX 3043 YAUCO PR

CSP Cefliled Puhlic -4ccomtantsakd Business Coniltants
0a698 3013 . TEL. (787) 85662)0 FAX:i87)8566233
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COI'IMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

$967,000, Series 2008,10r operctional pu.poses, payable in annual installments ranging frcm

$80,000 to $ 142,000, excluding variable interest from 1.43% to 6.00%, through July 1, 2017

$3,445,000, Series 2008, lor construction purposes, payable in annual inslallmefits rangiog from

$50,000 to $295,000, excluding variable interestlrom 1.53% lo 7.50%, through July 1, 2032

$660,000, Series 2010, Ior construction purposes, payable in annualinstallments ranging lrom

$75,000 to $120,000, excluding variable intercst lrom 6.00% to 7.00%, through July 1, 2016

$990,000, Se es 2010,I0r construction purposes, payable in annual ilslallments ranging from

$10,000 to $80,000, excluding variable interestlrom 6.00 to 7.00%, through July 1, 2034

$1 ,51 0,000, Se es 201 0, lor construction purposes, payable in ann ual inslallments Enging Lom

$20,000 to $130,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2034

$605,000, Series 2010, forconstruction purposes, payable in annualinstallments ranging lrom

$5,000 to $50,000, excluding variable intercst ftom 6.00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2034

$1,510,000, Series 2010, for construction purposes, payable in annual installmenls ranging from

$25,000 to $120,000, excluding variable inlerest from 4.75% to 6.75%' lhrough July '1, 2034

$2,770,000, Series 2011,10r construction purposes, payable in annualinstallments larging from

$60,00010 $255,000, excluding variable interest from 6.00% to 7 50%, through July 1, 2030

$275,000, Series 2011, for operational pu rposes, payable in annual installments ranging from $30,000

to $50,000, excluding variable interest trom 6.00 to 7.50%, through July 1, 2017

Total General Obligations

712,000

3,280,000

505,000

965,000

't,465,000

590,000

1,460,000

2,710,000

245.000

$ 19274040

These bonds and notes are payable wih lhe following lrunicipality's rcsourcesi

, Specialad valorem property tax, which is restricted lor debt service and retained by the Govemment Development Bank lor

Pueno Rico for such purposes;
.:. Irunicipalsales taxes resources restricted for debt seNice, andl
.:. Operational resources.

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSP Cetlifed Public Accoultdnts otd Business Consuhants

POBOX3043 YAUCOPR N698-3041 TEL. 1787) 856-62 20 FAX: (787) 856'6231 M



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I() -GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

The annual requirements to amortize the general obligalions bonds outstanding as ofJune 30, 2011 are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Total

Principal lnterest
payment payment

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016

2017-2021

2022-2026
2027 -2031

2032-2036

Total

The modgage payable by the Business-type Activities is owed by Villa Soigal Project and consists of a 8% mortgage nole,

payable in monthly installments of $13,203, including inlerest, until 2019, collateralized with land and building.

Annual requiremeots to maturity of the mortgage are as follov/s:

$ 1,440,000

1,540,000

1,510,000

1,260,000

1,270,000

3,602,000

3,435,000

3,865,000
'1,350.000

$ 19272.000

$ 1,096,695

1,131,672
1,044,814

980,205

899,523

3,675,297

2,614,982
1,293,064

180.813

$ 1eu1065

$ 2,536,695

2,671,672
2,554,814

2,240,205
2,169,523
7,277,297

6,049,982

5,158,064

1.530.813

$_32J!9.065

Year Ending
June 30,

Principal lnterest

DaYment payment Total

2012
20't3
2014
2015
2016

2017-2019

Total

$ 93,987

100,781

108,067

115,878

124,256
413.143

$ 956J12

$ 64,443

57,649

50,364

42,551

34,17 4

45.984

$,__anl65

$ 158,430
'158,430

158,431

158,429
158,430

459,127

s 1.2s1.277

RO\UN TORO &CO-.
PO ROX 3043 YAUCO PR
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALIW OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O - GEI'IERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

B. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS - LAW 42

On January 26, 2000, Act No. 42 was enacted lo authorize the CRllllto enter into a financing agreement of up to $200 million,

for a term ;ot exceeding 30 yeals. The fnancing agreement allows for the financing of a debt hat the municipalities of Puerto

Rico have with the CRII,, a;ising from the fnal settlements of property tax advances ve6us actual collections through frscal

year 2000. The amounts $at th; municipalities will collect from the additional property taxes rcsulting lrom lhe increases i0 the

;ubsidy from the Commonwealth to the municipalities are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this

subsidy was the result ofthe Public Law No. 238 ofAugusl 15, 1999

ln addition, on Febuary 12,2003, tte Municipality entered into a repayment agreement with the Gove.nment Development

Bank for Puerto Rico (GDB) and the CRI[!, to pay off tle excess of property tax advances thrcugh fscal year 2000 and 2001.

The CRll\,1 retains the payment fiom the property tax advances of the l,4unicipality. The amounts retained by $e CRlltl are

remitted to GDB on Juty 1 of each year through July 1, 2032. The outslanding balance ofthe note payable to the CRI[.4 at June

30, 2011 amounted to $959,098.

C. PROPERTY TAX DEBT- LAW 146

On Seplember 24, 2002,1he CRI[r, on behalfofthe municipalities of Puerto Rico, entered into a frnancing agreementwith GDB

pursuant to he provisions of Law No. 146 of October 1 1 , 2001 . The purpose of lh is f nancing ag reement was to extinguish in

advance cedain bonds payable issued by he Public Finance Corporation, a subsidiary olthe GDB, which were originally issued

to pay certain property tax receivables owned by the municipalilies of Puerto Rico through 1996. The outstanding balance ol the

note payable to the CRll\,l at J une 30, 201 1 amou nted to $1 58,921 .

D. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS - LIMS REPAYMENT PLAN

The l\rlunicipality entered into a inancing agreement with the CRIM for tle payment ofthe lrunicipality's share of the cost of an

infomation management system, acquired by the CRI[.4 on behalf of all mu nicipalities, for lhe managementofa digitaldatabase

of taxpayer,s properties located in Puerto Rico. The outstanding balance of the note payable to the cRll\.,lat June 30,2011

amounted to $32,272.

The annualrequirements to amortize the property tax debls outstanding as ofJune 30,2011 are as follows:

Year Ending Principal lnterest

June 30, payment Payment Total

2012
2013
2014
2015
2016
2017-2021

2022-2026
2027-2031

2032-2035

Total

$ 62,104

31,230
32,717

u,297
35,977

209,011

269,983

3s2,672
122.300

uJ50E1

$ 69,850

67,020
65,063

63,012

60,862

267,886

195,147

100,690

7.407

$ 190J37

$ 131,954

98,250
97,780

97,309

96,839

476,897

465,130
453,362
129.707

$ ],!!78

ROILLN TORO & Co-, CSP Ce ifie.l Public Accovta ts and Business Consuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O -GENEML LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

E. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

The govemmenlwide statement of net assets includes $2,630,652 of accrued sick leave benefits, and accrued vacation

beneits, reprcsenting the Municipality's commitmentto fund such costs from futurc opentions

F. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

Liabilities of $3,600,000 reported in the statement of net assets represent tie balance owed lor claims and iudgments at June

30, 2011, as described in Note 19.

G. STATE INSUMNCE HEALTH ADMINISTRATION

Liabilities of $256,266 reported in lhe statement of net assets represent the balance owed for services provided by the State

lnsurance Health Administration lo ihe l\runicipality and not paid at June 30, 2011.

NOTE 11 - LANDFILL POST.CLOSURE CARE COST OBLIGATION

The l,Iunicipality owns a municipal solid waste landfill and adopted fie required provisions of Statemenl No. 18, "Accounting tot

Munbipat iotii Waste Landfill Post-dosurc Care Costs", issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB No.

18) and the regulations set forth by the U.S. Envircnmental Protection Agency (EPA) in its'Solid Waste Disposal Facility

Criteria', issued on October 9, 1991. State afld federal 
'aws 

and regulations require lhe Municipality to place a final cover on its

landfill site when closed and perform ce(ain maintenance and monitoring functions at the landlill site lor 30 years after closure.

Although postrlosure care costs are paid only near or afler the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the irunicipality

reportja podion ofthese poslclosure care cosb as an operating expense in each period based on landfill capacity used as ol

each statiment of net assets date. The l\runicipality discontinued its landrill operations and ceased to accept solid waste in

January jg93. Post-closure care procedures were assumed by the Municipalily and the closure process was completed in

January 17, 1997.

The lotalestimated liability for post-closure care costs has been determined in $246,590 as ofJune 30 2011.

NOTE 12 - DEBT RETIREMENT

Revenues ol the Debt Service Fund consist of the ad-valorem property taxes which are recognized as revenue when collected

from taxpayers and reporled by the [,4unicipal Revenue Collection Center of the Commonweallh of Puerto Rico to the

Municipality.

These propedy taxes are accumulated by the l!4unicipal Revenue Collection Center in cosb of the general obligations boids

issued ty he lr,lunicipality. Payments are made to the Government Development Bank of the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico

from such accumulated funds by the l\.'lunicipal Revenue Colleclion Center of Puerto Rico.

NOTE,13 - PROPERry TAXES

The Municipal Revenue Colleclion Center ofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico is responsible for lhe assessmentof allreal and

personal pioperty located within the Municipality and for ihe levy, administration and colleciion of the corresponding tax

contribution.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ce iled Public Accot tants and Business Consuhants
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NOTE 13 - PROPERTY TAXES {CONTINUED)

The property tax contribution is levied each year over lhe appraised value of lhe prcperty atlhe beginning of he calendal year.

tne ieai property assessment is based on the cunent value existing in the year 1957 and $e personal prcperty at he current

value at the date ofthe assessment.

The tar rate per annum is 9.08% for real property and 5.83% for personal property of which 1.03% of both belong to the

Commonwealih of puerto Rico and 8.05% and 4.80%, respectively, belongs to the lllunicipality. From lhe po.tion belonging to

the l\runicipatity, 6 00% and 3.00%, respectively, represents the Municipality's basic tax rate that is appropriated for general

purposes and therefore accounted forthrough the GeneraiFund.

The remaining portions 2.25% for real property and 2.000/" for personal propery represents the ad-valorem property taxes

withheld by lhi irlunicipalRevenue Collection Centerofthe Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and restricted lordebl sewice, which

is accounted forthrough the Debt Seryice Fund (See Note 8). The Municipality has oot reached the maximum statutory tax rate

limitforthe basic tax whilethere is no limitalion for the ad-valorem tax rate.

The Commonwealth of Puerto Rico grants complete rcal property tax exoneralion on the frrst $15,000 assessed valuation on

rcsidenlial units occupied by their ownerc. However, the l\,lunicipality receives the full amount levied, except fol residential units

assessed at less hao 93,500 on which a complete exemption is graflted. The Municipal Revenue Colleclion Center, instead of

the property taxpayer, becomes the source of payment in these cases.

The Municipality grants a complete exemptiofl from personal property iaxes up to an assessment value of $50,000 to retailels

with an annual nel sales volume of less than $150,000 The M!nicipal Revenue Collection Center advances to the l\,{unicipality,

on monthly payments, 100% of the contributron assessed over property lor each fiscal year. ln accordance to Law, these

advances wiil be cont butions by the l,,lunicipal Revenue Collection Center ftom taxpayers. The l,4unicipal Revenue Collection

Cente. periodically info.ms to the [runicipality the amounts collected from taxpayers and applied lo outsianding advances

The l,,lunicipality reco.ds as revenue in the general fund ihe property tax contribuiion when received frcm monthly advances

from l[,lunicipal Revenue Collection Center.

Oue to the fact that collections of property tax arc applied to lhe advances of prcperty lax paid by tlle l\,'lunicipal Revenue

Collection Center. the amo zation of the advance at end of year was not available due to that is in process ol verifcation by

externalauditors.

NOTE I4 - MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

The municipal license tax is levied each year based on the prior year's gross rcvenues for all commercial and industrial

organizatio;s doing business in the l\,lunicipality and which are not totally or partially exempt from lhis tax under the lndustdal

ln;entives Laws oithe Commonwealth of puerto Rico. All taxpayeE are required to file their declarations by Ap l 23 of each

year. The tax rates are as follows:

.l 1.50% for financial instilutions.

* 1.00% forsavings and loan associations.
.? 0.50% for other organizations over $500,000

* 0.40% for other organizations up to $500,000

Taxes arc payable in two equal semi-annual installments on July 1 and January 1 following the date oi levy. lf they are paid with

declaration, the tarpayer is granted a 5% of discount. Collections oftaxes during current fiscalyear, applicable to the nextfscal

year, are recorded as deferred rcvenues in the General Fund

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTE,I5 -SALES AND USE TAXES

on July 4, 2006, the Legislature of fie commonwealth of Puerto Rico approved Act No. 117 (Act 117) which amends lhe

puerto'Rico lnteinal Revinue Code ol't994 to provide for a sales and use tax of 5.50/0 to be imposed by the Commonwealth

Government. Act 117 also authorizes each municipalty govemment to impose a municipal sales and use tax of 1.5%. This

municipal sales and use tax has in geneEl the same tax base and limitalions (except for unprocessed foods) as those provided

by the Commonweahh's sales and use tax.

Section 6189 of the Puerto Rico lnternal Revenue Code of '1994, as amended, authorizes the l\4unicipalities in Puetu Rico to

impose a sales and use tax to consumers. This tax must be imposed in conformity with the base, exemptions and limitations

co;lained Subtifle BB of the Code. The lrunicipalsales Tax is specifically imposed overallsales hansactions of taxable items

and combined transactions (as defined by the municipal internal regulation)taken place within municipallimits. The Municipal

Tax is also specirically impoied over the purchase price for the use, storage or consumption of taxable tnnsactions (as defined

by the municipalintemal regulation) taken place wilhin municipal limits.

The l\.{unicipalLegislature apprcved ihe imposition ofthe municipalsales and use lax during fiscal yeal 2006-2007. lndividuals,

organizations and entities subiect 1o collecl lhe municipal sales and use tax must fle a tar retlrn to the l\,lunicipality Tax is due

eaih 20h day ofeach month based on tax collected in the preceding month. Resources arc recorded in the GeneralFund

AIso, on July 29,2007, he Governor of Puerto Rico signed into Law an amendment of Act No 117,H'B'2193knownasAct

No. 80. Th; most signilicant amendments werc: irst, lo uniform lhe tax rate at 7% of which lhe municipalities will collect 1%

and te puerto Rico ireasury Department he other 6%, 05% ofhe 6% belongs to the municipality and il is distributed through

three separate funds: l\,lunicipal oevelopment Fund, [,4unicipal Redemption Fund and Municipal lmprcvements Fund;secondly

the esta6lishment of a Local Commercial Rule and the elimination of source and nexus rules to impose the sale and use tax.

These tunds are administered by the Govemment oeveiopment Bank for Puerlo Rico. Finally, lhe Law restdcts the use of the

funds by the municipalities to certain specilic activities.

NOTE 16 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

lntergovemmental revenues consist primarily of funds received from the Commonwealih of Puerto Rico, 'in lieu of tax"

payrn'ents from the Quas|public Corporation, Puerto Rico Elect c Power Authority, and federal fnancial assistance received

from federal govemment.

Grants and subsidies received fiom $e Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico and fedeEl agencies include, among othe6, a general

subsidy for urban development and capital improvements. lntergovemmental revenues are accounted for lhrough the General

Fund except for trose directly related to urban development and capital improvements, which are accounted for through the

special Revenue and the capital Project Funds. Federal Financial Assistance is ecorded in the special Revenue Fund.

COTIiIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE ,t7 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

lnterfund transfers during the liscalyear ended at June 30, 2011, are summarized as lollowsi

General Fund

Head Sta(

Debi Service Fund

Loans Fund

Oher Governmenlal
Funds

Oher Governmental

Funds

Total

Debl Service Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Other Governmental

Funds

Debt relircrnent

To cover prior year

operational loans

To cover opeEling
expendilures

To cover operaling

expendilurcs

To cover operating

expenditurcs

To cover opeEling
expenditures

$ 497,690

19,U2

1,400

241252

8,490

257.608

$ 1025J82

NOTE I8. EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN

The Employee's Retirement System of the Govemment of Puerto Rico and its instrumentality (ERS) is the administrator of a

costsharing multiple-employd retirement system established by the Commonwealth of Puerlo Rico. The ERS was created

u0der $e [ct 447, approvea on [4ay 
.15, 1951, as amended, and became effective on January 1, 1952. ERS covers all regular

employees of lhe Commonweallh of Puedo Rico and its instrumentality and of certain municipalities and components units not

covered by theh own retiremeflt systems.

Participatio0 is mandatory except for membeE of the Legislature, Govemment secretaries, Head of Agencies and Public

lnstrumentality, Assistanti of the Governor,lhe Comptroller ofthe Puerto Rico, Gubernatorial Board and Committee appointees

and Experimental Service Station employees. ERS provides retilement, death and disability benefts. Disability retilement

benefits are available to memberc for occupational and non-occupational disabilities. Reiirement benelits depend upon age at

retirementand numberofyears of credited service Benefits vest after ten yearc of plan participation

The Municipality adopted lhe requirements of GASBS No. 25 for all lhe careel employees lhat are covered under lhe

commonwealth of Puerto Rico Employee's Retirement system, a multiple-employer public employee retirement system,

established by State Laws.

under the plan, tle employees and employer portions are contributed, for which, the employee amount is withheld from

salaries. Covered emploieei are required by Commonwealth statute io contribute 5.775% for the frrst $550 of monthly salary

plus 8.275% for he excess of this amounl, or on the atlernative, 8.275% ofallsalary. The i.4unicipality contributes to the system

9.275% of the padicipating employee's salaries.

ROMAN TORO &CO, CSP Ce,liied Public Accowtanls and Busin.ss ConsuLants
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NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAiI ICONTINUED)

Law Number 305 of september 24, 1999, amendments the Act Number 447 that establish a savings program. All employees

active in the system as of December 31, 1999 may elect to transFer from define contribution progmms to the new savings

program (a delined ontribution plan). Employees in the savings program may nowcontribute from a minimum 0f8.275% up to

a m-axim;m of ioo/o ol their monihly satary, and will invested in an account which will eilheri (a) earn a fixed rate based on the

two-year Constant l\.,laturity Treasury Notsor, (b)earn a rate equallo 75% of lhe leturn ofthe System's investment portfolio (net

of m;nagement fees), oric) eam a combination of both alternatives. lf al time of retirement accumulated benelits amount to

g10,000;r bss may eleci to receive a lump sum distribution up to the accumulated benelits. Under tle new program the

retirement age is reduced from 65 to 60 for those employees who joined the curent plan on or after Ap l1,1990

The pension benefit for participants who relire wilh less than 30 years of service is computed at lhe rate of 1%% ol thei a\enge

compensation lor each year of credit seNice lor the remaining years. The System also provides for death and disability benefits

and the assets ofthe System pertaining to the paftcipant employees.

A variety of significant actuarial assumptions are used to dete.mine he sta0dard measurc ol the pension benefit obligation afld

lhese assumptions are summarized below:

.:. The presentvalue ofthe future pension payments was computed by using a discountof9%.

* Future pension payments rcfect an assumption of a 6% salary increase.

All employees that do noi elect to lransfer for the new program and who at the time ofemployment are 55 years old or less are

eligible tqparticipate in the System. Pension benefils lor participants with 30 years of servi@ are as follows:

COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARSOF PARTICIPANT'S

SESYIEE AGE PENSION BENEFITS

65% of the average of the th.ee yeals of highest salary during the

30 or more 55 or less employee's service period.

75% ofthe average ofthe lhree years ofhighestsalary during the

30 or more 58 or morc employee's service peiod.

75% of the average of the three years of highest salary dudng the

employee's service period {employees started wo*ing aftelAp l 1,

30 or more 65 or more 1990).

ROIL4N T)RO & CO., CSP CetliJied Pllblic Accomtants and Dusikess Consultants
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The amount of the tolal pension benefit obligalion is based on a standardized measurement established by GASBS No. 27,

Financiat Repoting for D;efrned Benefit Pensbn Plans ard Notes Disc/osu/e lot Defrned Contibulions Plans. The standardized

,a"rr,"."nt i, fli" u"tuurial present value ol estimated defned pension benefits, adjusted for the effects of prolected salary

increases and step-rate benef[, estimated io be payable in the futurc as a result of employee setuices performed to date.

The measure is intended to help useB assess the system's funding status on a going-concem basis, assess progress made in

accumulating sufficient assets io pay benelits when due, and make comparisons among other public retirement systems The

measure is independent of the actua al[unding method usedtodetemine contributions to the plan
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 18 - EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The membership of rctirees and beneficiaries currenlly rec€iving benelits and te.minated employees enti{ed to benelits, but not

yet receiving benefts, and aclive employees and lhe dist bution of active employees between vested and nofl-vesled is not

readily available.

contributions in 2006 and prior years were made based on percentages established by the law. such percentage has not been

based on actuarial studies, aj requked by accounting priflciples generally accepted i0 the United States of Ame ca- An

actuarial compilation of the annual ;ontributlon applicable to the l\4unicipality has not been prepared Accordingly, the accounls

by which the actual contributions differ fiom the required actuarial contribulions are not known'

The total pension expenditures recorded in the category of administration lor the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2011 was

approximaiety $386,1b6. Altemployees who at the lime ofemployment are 55 years old or less are eligible to participate in the

Syitem. No benefit is payable ifthe participant receives a refund of his ac.umulated contribulions

The historical trend infomation regading the accumulation of assets and pension benelit obligation in the ERS is not available.

For the ten-year trend information, refeito lhe separately issued financial statements of the ERS as of and for the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2011. The P.R. Retircment Plan Administration provides additional information of he ERS. They issue a public

availabb financial report that includes financial statements and rcquired supplemeniary information for ERs, as a component

unit of the Commonweatth of Puerto Rico. That rcport may be obtained by writing to lhe Adminisiration at PO Box 42003,

l,4inillas Statiofl, San Juan, P.R.00940.

NOTE I9- CONTINGENCIES

A. CLAIMS AND JUDGMENTS

The Municipality is, at prcsent, a defundant in a number of legal matters that arise from alleged improper application of policies

and negligenc; in the ordinary coume ol the l,lunicipality's activities. Wilh respect to pending litigation, the [,lunicipaliiy has

reported liabilities of$3,600,000 in the govemmenl wide statementof net assets.

It is manageme[t's opinion, based on lhe advice of the legal counsel, that lhe polential claims against he N,'lunicipality not

clvered by insurance willmaterially alfect the financial resources for ils payment'

ln addition, the Municipality is a defendant or codelendant in severallegalproceedings, which are in discovery stage. cerlain of

these claims are coverei by inlurance. Legal counsels with he informalion cuffently available cannot determine the fnal

ouicome of these proceedin;. However, it h;s been the Municipality's experience that such actions are settled lor amount6

substantially less than the claim amounts.

B. FEDEML GMNTS

ln the normal cou6e of operations, the l,,tunicipality receives granls from various Federal and state agencies. The grant

p.!r"ri ,," *op"t to .udit by agents of the granting authoily, he purpose of which is to ensure compliance with conditions

freiedent to the granting oftunds.lny liability for reimbursement which may arise as the resull ofthese audib is not believed to

be material.
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

ITIOTE 20 - FUND BALANCE

As ofJune 30,2011, the tund balance is comprised ofthe following:

Loan6 Gov€rnm.ntal

Public Wod6 and San(a[on

Public wo*s and Sanilation

i 246,391

20,1,353

286.857
159,119

1,523,704

.
61,020

180.263

1 2,141:11t1

$ 246.391

2,1U,353
286 85i
159119

6866017
2193,469

235,285
6,872

155800
4 876
1,860

180.263

I319.322

t ll,4i0.4!1

235.285
6,8T2

94 780
4876
I860

1.319 X22

I t 0i2t9i

.

+i

t.

2,193,469

.

1".r9r,4i9

s-
x*,ry

.

t 2l{i,0!!

t.

5342,313

.

..

tl;tszu3

NOTE 21 -ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEIiIENTS

A. GOVERNMENTAL FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lollowing restatements have been made in the govemmental fund fnancial statements, which a.e reported as a0

adiusiment to the beginning fund balances:

To Bod the Rel ement SYslem

Adn nislElion Sp€cia Las debl

To adtust prior year Mounls p.yable

Fund bal.n6o, beginning a3 rclt ted

$ 4 611,312 $ 1975656 $ 10097,022

(968 835)

----J219

t llgrriT

72.104

(968.88s)

t !$i! t 1l44J' l!,ff1112 tMlJs!

ROMAN TORO A CO,,
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NOTES TO THE BASTC FtNANCtAL STATEMENTS (C0 TINUED)

NOTE 21- ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B. GOVERNMENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following restatements have been made in the govemmental wide fnancial statemeflts, which arc rcpoded as an

adjustmentto the beginniflg net assets:

Governmental Activities

- Description Total

Net assets, beginning $ 36,725292

- To record the Retirement Syslem

Administration - Special Laws debt (968,885)

_ To adjust prior year acc.unts payable 72,100

To record the State lnsurance Health

Administration debl (256,266)

- To adjust prio.year bonds payable (875,000)

Adjustmentto capitalassets 474.995

- Nei assets, begirning as restated $j5-!l2g!6

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ce iled Public Accomtants and Business Consulants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO
MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCALYEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

Budqeted Amounts
Orisinal Final

Vadance {ilh
ActualAmounts FinalBudget
(Budg€taryBasis) Po3itive

{See llote Al {Neoativet

REVEI,IUES:

Municipal license taxes

Sales laxes
Charges lor services
Slale contribut ons

lnteresl, fnes and penaltres

EXPEilDITURES, EilCUI.!BRAI/CES AIID OTHER
FlNrrilCltlc USES:

Currenl

General govemmenl

Publcwo*sand sanitalon
Cullure

Hea lh, welfaB and €duc?lion
Tolil exp€ndifure3, encumbrance! and olher
financing uses

EXCESS (DEFTC|E CY) OF REVET{UES OVER
(u 0ER) EXPEilDITURES, E CU MBRA],ICES AXD
oTHER FNAI{C|NG SOURCES (USES}

$ 3,936,400

1 800,000

702,500

6,163,770
792,000

126,000

394,000

$ 3,936.400
1,800 000

742540
6163,770

792,000

126.000

394,000
150.000

__t4.0!4.02!

4263056
1,850,609

14,852
758,412

6,1*722
4/./459
380 693
379 640

$ 326,656
50,609

14,852
55,912

\ul,541)
254 693
(14,360)

t150.000)

-.lgiJzli
13 914 670

IIOTE A- EXPI.AI{ATIOi{ OF DIFFEREI'/CE EEIWEEII BUDGETARY IIJFLOWSAND OUTFLOWSA}ID GAAP REVENUESAIID

8,496,523
1116,762
2,695,359

311,475
v5,410
949.141

__rtg40l0

s-

8.528790
r 184126
2792413

323293
353271
882.171

--J.3.!!4,!20

7862,091
1140,113
2922,619

289,325

338,834

$ !79J!{

666 699
44,013

(130,206)

33,968

14,437

$ 879t54

$ 14260443
50 074

U4;11qfi?

$ 13,380,689

778,946
17,654

(262 566)
(497.690)

Llt 41z0it

EXPEI{SES

Erplanalion of Difference!:

Sourcearinfl orB of resources:
Aclual amounls (budgelary bash)'available for appropriAion" from the budgelary comparlson sdedule

Dlfierences-budgel lo GAAP
Tolal revenues and olhea liflancrng sources as eporled on lhe slalemenl of revenues, expendilures, and changes in fund

baiances

lJse.roulfloss ol resources:
Adual amounts (budgetary basis)'tolal cha€es to appopdations'fom he bldgelary compaison sdledule

Diffarences-b{dgel to GqAP:
Accrualadlusrnentsloexpendilures
Pdor year expendilu€ are nol ouflows ol budgelary resources, bul are expendilure lor linancial purposes
Enc! m brances lor su p plies and equ ipmenl ordercd bul noi rcceived are reponed in lhe year lhe order rs d aced lor

budgetary reporling ryrpos€s
Transfer to olher funds are ou ows of budgetary resources bul are nol expendituE Lr fnancjal reponing purposes

Total exp€ndilurcs and olher linancing uses as reporled on lhe slatemenl oJ revenues, expendilures, and chanqes in Iund
balances
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTE TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENEML FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,201,I

- NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

_ A, BUDGETARY CONTROL

The Municipality's annual budget is prcpared on the budgetary basis of accounting, which is not in accordance with GAAP, and
rcprcsents departmental appropriations recommended by he lrayor and app.oved by the [4unicipal Legislaturc prior to the

- beginning of the fiscal year. Amendments to the budget require lhe approval of the Municipal Legislature. Transfers of
appropriations within the budget, known as l\,layols Resolutions, do flot require the approvalolhe L4unicipal Legislature.

- The lt4unicipality prepares its annual budget including the operations ofthe general fund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounting is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orderc, contracts) are considercd

_ expendilures when incurred. For GAAP reporting purposes, encumbrances outstanding at year€nd are rcported as reservations
of fund balaflces and do not constitute expendilures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the
subsequent year.

- The unencumbered balance of any approp ation at lhe end of the fscal year will lapse at the end of such iscal year. Other
appropriations, mainly capital project appropdalions, are continuing accounts for wttich the Municipal Legislature has authorized

_ that an unspent balance from the prioryear be carried forward and made available lorcunenl spending.

The annual budget as presented in the Budgetary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is lhe budget ordinance at June 30,
2011 represenliflg the originalbudget. Fhere were no s!pplementalappropriations for the yearended June 30,2011.

ROMIN TORO &CO., CSP Ceiilied Public Accotntants and Business Consuhatus
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2011

FEDERA GRAIITORIPASS.THROIJGH OR CLUSTER TITLE

t ,S, Dooannr.d of AoricultuB

RulalR6nbl Hou!;hg Loan (sedbn 515 OiredLoan)

Pashrough Rrerb Rao Edu€lbn DeparhEnt

ChiB and AduliCare Food Program

Subbbl DeparhEntolAgrixltle

u.S. ogoarttrEni ofHouii.!..d urban Dev.lopmnt

Comni, DevebFrEnl 8lo€{ Granl Program, Entilerenl Ganb

Sedon 8 Housrng asisEne PayrenB

ARM-HorelesesPreveriion and Raprd R&Houdng Program

Pubtc and lndian Housing

S€c$n 8 Housng choiE vouche. Program

SubbElU.S. Oept ol Housrng and Urban Developrenl

U.s. o.partmnt of Tran6portatlon

Pashrough Plerb Rrco oepartrEnl oi Transpo.blion

(Iraffc SabV Comission):

sbb and Comniy H,shway SaE! (ARM)

u,S. Departnent ol En.Ev

Energy Efdenq and Conse.valion Blo.k G6nl(ARRA)

U,S. D.pannEnt ol H.allh and Hu.tan S.toic6

Pashrough Puerb Rico Gore.no/s Ofie ofChih Services and

!!!lEE

10415

10 558

!!!E!E

ccc 013

$ 956,112

346259

14 218

14195

14 257

14 850

14871

563 229

172.435

50,336

700,40!

161,415

20600

1 486,809

140000

Comnily Developrcnt

S{bbblHead ShnCtusbr

Passhrough Pue.b Rico Govemo/s Olice ol Child SeNis and Conmrn(y

Ch ld Care and Developrent Eloc( Grant ClusEr

ARRA Child Care and Dev€lopnE Block Granl

Subbbl Ch ld Care Clusb.

Subbbl D@l olHealhand Humnseryis

TOTAI O(PENDITURES OF FEOERAL AWARDS

81.128

93 600

93 708

93575

93713

02cH994 06

02sE9944

241 2A1A 46

3122,568

116,610

3,239,178

450,717

60152

510869

3,750047

6 8,430,3s3
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASIIAN

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

JUNE 30,2011

NOTE A. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule ofexpendrtures offede[alawards includes lhe federalgranl activity ofthe Municipality and is prcsented

on lhe moiified accrua basrs of acmunting. Expendrtures are recognized when the rclaled liabllity is ncured. The informalron in lhis
schedule is presented in acclrdance with the requ rements of oMB Circuar A133,'Audits of States, Local Governments and
Nonprofit Organizations". Therefore, some amounts presented in lhis schedule may differ from lhe amounls presenled rn, or used in

lhe preparalion of lhe basicfnancia slalements

NOTE B. FEDERAL CFDA NUIiIBER

The Catalog of Federal Domestic Assislance (CFDA) Number s a program identification numbe. delemined by lhe O[,48 Calaog ol
Federal Dorneslic Assstance. The frst lwo digits identify the lederal departmenl or agency that admin ste[S the progGm and lhe last
three rurnbers are assigned by numedca sequence.

NOTE C. PASS,THROUGH ENTITY IDENTIFYING NUMBER

Slate or ocalgovemment rcdislrbutons offederal awards lo the l\runicipality, known as pass through awards", should be lrealed by
the l\,iuniclpality as though they were recerved directly from the federal govemmenl OMB Circular A-133 requ res lhe schedule lo
include lhe narne of lhe pass-through entrty and lhe dent fy ng number assigned by the pass'ihrough enlity for lhe federa awards
rcceived as a sub recipient. N umbers idenlifred as N/A are nol applicable and numbers dentifred as N/AV are not avai able.

NOTE D. RECONCILIATION OF EXPENDITURES PRESEI,ITED IN THE SCHEOULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDEML
AWARDSTO THE EXPENDITURES PRESENTED IN THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMEt.]TS

Desc ption
Other

Funds
Business.Type

14.195

14_218

14_871

14_257

14.850

93.600
93.708

93.575
10.558

20 600

81.128
93.713

Tolal lederal awards expendilures
Tolal nonfederal awads expenditures and

drang€s in bads ol accounling

Tolal e&enditulgr, fund slalements

$
1,589,711

700,()9
1728i5
50,336

116.610

450,717

346,259
140,000

161,415

il,152

s563.229

3122.568

3,122568 3 788 444 56322S

2 989 625 26 364

$3122,568 $6 78,069 $539,593

The federal expendlure of Rural Renla Housing Loan (Secton 515 Direct Loan, CFDA 10.415) s a loan guarantee and do not
represenl a cash award orexpendrture forthe fisca year

ROMAN TORO &CO., CSP Ceiiled Public Accoutants and Business Consultants
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

AND ON COMPLIANCEAND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS PERFORMEO IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUD'IIIVG SIAI'DARDS

Honorable Mayor and lremberofthe
Mun icipal Assembly
lllunicipality ofSan Sebasti6n, Puerto Rico

We have audited the linancial slatements of lhe gove.nmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and lhe aggregate remaining tund intormation of l,4unicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico as of and for he
year ended June 30, 2011, which collectively comprise Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's basic fnancial
statements and have issued our report thercon dated January 20, 2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with

auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial

audits contained in Goyernnent Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller Generalof he United States.

lntemal Control Over Financial Reporting

ln planning and perfoming our audit, we considered l\4unicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's intemal cootrol

over linancial repoding as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for he purpose of expressing our opinions

on lhe fnancial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on he effeciiveness of l\,lunicipality of
San Sebastien, Puerto Rico's internal control over fnancial reporting. Accordiflgly, we do not express an opinion on

the effecliveness ofthe l\,lunicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's inlemal control over financialreporting.

A deficiency in intemal contrcl exisls when lhe design or operation ol a control does not allow management or
employees, in the nomal course of perfoming their assigfled functions, to prevert, or detect and correct
misstalements on a limely basis. A nateial weakness is a deliciency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

co0trol such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will

not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

our consideralion of intemal control over inancial reporting was for the limiled punose descdbed in the frst
paragraph and was not designed to identify all defciencies in internal control over linancial repo.ting that might be

deliciencies, signifcant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any defciencies in intemal conhol
over financial reporting that we considerto be material weaknesses, as defned above.
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Compliance and Olher Mailers

As part of obtaining rcasonable assurance about whelher ltlunicipality of San Sebastien, Puerto Rico's fnancial
stalemenls are free of material misstatement, we perforned tests of its compliance wilh ce(ain provisions of laws,

regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on

the delermination oflinancial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions

was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests

disclosed certain instances of noncompliance or other matters lhat are required to be reported under Goverrrrertal
Auditing Standards atdwhich are described in the accompanying schedule offindings and questioned costs as item

2011-IH.

Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's rcsponse to $e findings identified in our audit is described

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit lvunicipality of San Sebastan,
Rico's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on il.

This report is intended solely br tle information and use of management, others wifiin he entity, lrunicipal
Assembly, and fedeEl awarding agencies and pass-tuough entjlhs and is not intended b be and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parlies.

/ ) '-7- ',.
1---/ / a-+ {(".

/-*-
ROMAN TORO & CO,, CONTADORES

*"'??i$,['fi'rR%i3E

Yauco, Puerto Rico

January m,2012

Slamp #E9975 was affixed to
he original of his report

ROM4NTORO & CO., CSP C.rtifed Public Ac&*llents atld Business Consuhants
PO BOX 1013 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 TEL.1787) ti56 6220 FAX: 1787) 856-6233 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT Ot,I COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT

COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAII'I AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCEWITH OMB CIRCULARA.l33

Honorable l\rayor and l\rember of the

Mun icipal Assembly
It/unicipality of San Sebastien, Puerto Rico

Compliance

We have audited iilunicipality of San Sebastian, Puerlo Rico's compliance, with the types of compliance

requirements described h lhe OMB Arcub A-133 Conpliartce Supplement that could have a direct and material

effect on each of l\runicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,

2011. Municipality of San Sebasli6n, Puerto Rico's major federal programs are identiied in the summary ol auditor's

resufts section ofthe accompanying schedule offndings and questioned costs. Complia0ce with the requiremenls of
laws, regulalions, contracts, and grants applicable to each of ib major federal programs is the responsibility of
Llunicipality of San Sebastiao's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Municipality ol San

SebasMn's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit ofcompliance in accordance with audiliflg standards generally accepted in $e United States

of America; the sta0dards applicable to llnancial audits contained in Govennent Audiling Standards, issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States and OMB Arcuhr A-133, Audits of States, Local Governnents, and Non-

Proft Aganizations.Ihose standards and OMB Chcular A-133 rcqrire lhat we plan and perform tle audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements relerred lo above

tlat could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred An audit includes examiniflg, on a

test basis, evidence about Municipality of San Sebasten, Puerio Rico's compliance with those requirements and

performing such olher procedures as we considered necessary in the circumslances. We believe hat our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal detemination of lt4unicipality of San

Sebastian, Pue(o Rico's compliance with those requirements.

As described in ilem 2011-lll-'t in the accompanyiq schedule off0dings and questioned costs, be lruflicipality ol
San Sebasffin, Puerto Rico did not comply with requirements regarding period of avallability fiat are applicable to its

Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program (ARRA tunded, CFDA 14.257). Compliance with such

requirements is necessary, in our opioion, for the l\.iunicipality of San Sebastien, Puerto Rico to comply with the

requirements applicable to that prcgram.

ln our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the preceding paragraph, Municipality of San Sebastian,

Puerlo Rico, complied, in all mate al respects, with fie compliance requiremeots efetred to above that could have a

directand materialelfect on each of its major federal prog rams for the yearended June 30,2011.
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lntemal Control Over Comdiance

i,lanagement of ll,{unicipality of San Sebasten, Puerto Rico, is respoflsible for establishing and maintaining effective

inlemal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, conlracls, and granis applicable to

federal programs. ln planning and performing our audit, we considered l,luflicipality ol San Seba$ian, Puerto Rico's

internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal

program lo determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test

and report on internal conlrcl over compliance in accordance with OMB Ckcular A-133, but not lor the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ol intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an

opinion on the effectiveness of i,4unicipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's internal control over compliance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for lhe limited pu.pose described in the preceding

paragEph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that might be

sigtificant deficiencias or nateial weaknesses and therefore, there can be no assurance that all deficiencies,

signilicant deficlencies, ot nateial weaknesses have been idenlified. However, as discussed below, we identified

certain delicieocies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be a nateial weakness.

A deticiency in internal confol over compliance exists when the design or operation of a @ntrol over compliance

does not allow management oremployees, in the normalcourse of performing theirassigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance rcquirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A

maledal weakness in intemal control over compliarce is a defciency, or combination of deficiencies, in inlernal

control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility tral material noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement ofa fuderal program willnol be prevented, or detected and corrected, ori a timely basb. We

consider lhe defciencies in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying schedule offindings and

q uestioned costs as ilem 201 1 -lll-1 lo be a mate,a/ weak ess.

Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerto Rico's response to fle findings identified in our audit is described in the

accompanying schedule of fndings and questioned cosls. We did not audit lvunicipality of San Sebastian, Puetu
Rico's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the informalion and use of management, l\ilunicipal Assembly, others within the

entity, federal awarding agencies, and pass{hrough entities and is not intended to be afld should not be used by

anyone other tha0 these specifed parlies. __ .\/) .'-T- -'.,-
(o*r tono a ao., aonrorooaa

PUBLICOSAUTORIZAODS. CSP

LICENSE #35 - IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico

lanlary 20, 2012
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

I/IUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

- SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2011

- SECTIOI{ I-SUM ARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS

Iinancial S-tatcrnents

Type of audilols reporl issued:

lnlemal conlrd over linancial relorlino:

. Sisnincanlmnlroldefi{i€ncyidenlified?

. Material weakn€ss (es) idenlifi€d?

Noncomoliance malenal to linancial slatemenls noted?

Fodaral Am'tb

_ lnlernal conlrol ove r major prcglamsl

. sonfic€nlconroldeficiencyidenlified?

Malerial w€kiess (es) idedilied?

Type oI audilois repon issued on compliance lor
Major Programs:

E Unquailedopnion E Oua rled opn on

! mers" oor-ron ! Duarre,opnon

E yes

Eto
Ev*

Ev*
E yes

I rone reponec

EM
ENo

E None reponed

Et"

E Unqualmed ofinion E Oualrfied Oprnion

E Ad!€B€ Opinion E Dsclaimeropinon

A"y a-o ' hdrng dEc osed fai ale lequ rcd ro be €poled

- "accorddnce,^,ithsedon510(aldcicua a-'r3) f1] tes En"
ldenlilic?lion of Major PrQrams:

- CFDA Numb€r

10415
10558
14195
14 218

14257
14871

_ 20 600
81128

93 575i93.713

_ 
93 600 93.708

Name of Federal Proqram or Clusler
Rura RentalHous ng Loan

Child and Adult Care Food Proqram

Section I Houslng Ass slanc€ Paymenls

Communlly Development Block Granl - Enlillemenl Grants

ARRA - Homelessness Prevenlion and Rapid Re Housing Program

Section 8 Housinq Choice vouchers Program

State and Communily Highway Safely (ARM)
Energy Elliciency and Conservat on Block Granl (ARRA)

Ch ld Care and Developmenl I ock Glanl Cllsl€r
Head SIan Programs Clusler

Dollar lhreshold used lo distinguish belween
Type A and Type B Programs:

- Audllee qualifed as lorr/ risk audilee?

s300.000

Ev* Ero

SECTION II- FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS FINDINGS

No frndings are reported.

ROM4N TORO & CO., CSP CertiJie.l Public Accontants and Business Consulbnts
Po RoX to41 YAIICo PR 00698 1041 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: 087) 856-62JJ 
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND 0UESTIONED COSTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 201'1

SECTION III. FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS

20't't- t-l
Type ol finding Fede.al Awad.
Siluation: I\,laledal weaknesst compliance wilh federal regulatons.

Fede€l Programs: ARRA - Homelessness Prevention and Rapid Re-Housing Program (14.257)

Compliance Requiremenls: Period of Availability rcquirements.

PriorYea(s) Audit Finding(s): None.

Queslioned Cosls: None.

Condition:
The N,4unicipality did not comply wilh expending the rcquiied sixty percent (60%)ofhe prcgrams assigned tunds wilhin lhe frrsl

lwo yeals since its funds were ava able for obligalion.

Cfilext:
The proqEm was awaded lo lhe fi,4lnicipality by HUD on July 24, 2009lor a total of $568,040. The progGm s tequirements in

lhe Ame can Recovery and Re-inveslment Act diclate lhal 60% ol such funds must be expended wilhin the first two yea6. ln

order to comply wilh such rcquirement, lhe program had to expend $340,824 on or before July 24, 2011. As of June 30, 2011,

the program had expended $187,673, or 33% of lhe program's funds. As ol July 24, 2011, the program had expended just over

$200,000 representng approximately 35% of lhe program's tunds.

oueslioned costs have nol been detemined because HPRP'S requiremenls assign HUD the rcsponsibilily lo determine proper

aclion rcgarding lhis nonclmpliance situalion.

Citetu:
Recipients of HPRP granls must expend at leasl sixly percent (60%) of such funds within t\ryo (2) years of the date on which

funds became available for obligalion; and expend one-hundred percent (100%) oI such funds with_in lhree (3) yea[s of such

date as per lhe American Recovery and Re-investment Acl's rcquircments (Page 123 Slat. 221).

Causei
The departmenl in charge ol the progmm did nol manage and superuise its pedormance wlh respect to timeliness of use of

funds. and did nolcommunicate wilh hlgher management when lhe risk olnoncompliance became signifcanl.

Effecl:
The Program did nol comply wilh fedeGl law requiremenls on timely usage, and could be subject lo funding decreases or eady

closure.

Auditots rccommendetion:
The deparlrnent in charge of the progam should conlinue consulling with HUD over tlre Lrse of lhe program, and lry to meel lhe

3 year limil rule. The Municipality should also monitor ils programs more closely to assure flal objectves ae being mel on a

timelymanner in order lo complywilh deadiine rcquiremenls.

Views of rcsponsible offichls and coftective eclions:

Because il was a new proq[am, the l\,{uniopality maintained constant mmmunrcalion with the federal agency to provide us

infomation to comply with the eligibility requircment for lhe program participants. ln November 2010, a new regulalion was

appoved toestablish the eligibility requircments and \^/e lhen began to usethe funds

tjp to the date ofthis reporl, $363,508.48 has been disbuGed which amoonls lo 65% expensed of lhe tolalaward. on average,

the pmgram is expending amund $30,000 per month, trus we expecl lhe totalfunds oflhe plogram willbe used in their enlircly

al the end of the program's award term limit.

Audit ftnding slatus:
Unresolved,

End of Seclion
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